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Vision
ZHREZEFASEBNASEME - Bt =
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To achieve world-wide recognition as an
excellent Companies Registry giving the
community a quality service.
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To provide our customers with efficient, cost-effective and quality
services and facilities to incorporate companies and to register and
inspect company documents.

To continuously review and enhance our services and facilities and
undertake effective enforcement, taking account of the best modern
technology available.

To motivate our staff to achieve organisational objectives by adopting
appropriate human resource management strategies.
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To care for and respect our customers by listening
to them and taking into account their needs and
expectations when shaping the types and quality of
service which we deliver.

To care for and respect our colleagues as a quality
service and effective enforcement can be delivered and
undertaken only through dedicated people of high calibre
working together as a team.

To change for the better by remaining receptive to new
ideas, technologies and work practices so as to enhance
the level and quality of our services and facilities.
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Together, we will enter a new chapter.
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| have great pleasure in presenting the Companies Registry’s Annual Report for 2012-13 — a remarkable
year which witnessed the passage of the new Companies Ordinance by the Legislative Council, the
Registry’s 20" Anniversary, and my 6™ Anniversary as the General Manager of the Companies Registry
Trading Fund.

BAREH (ATMEE)Y REBELLSIEMNSE  With more than 900 sections, 11 schedules and almost 700 consequential
ENREMNTEEMz—  (ATHERY 8  amendments to existing law, the new Companies Ordinance is, | believe,
ETHBBICOEME ~ 11EMZEK » LRI one of the longest and most complex piece of legislation ever enacted in
TOOMERHIRBEEBIMEEER] - ER/ATERE  Hong Kong. The rewrite of the company law has been an enormously
BEE2-BEEKEBN T REL=Z=E2EFSET  challenging project, and | was honoured to be among the team who
EEB RN —8 - 828 BEH <</ATTI By 7 witnessed its passage in the Legislative Council (LegCo) Chamber on 12
_B-_FTATRAEIDESEEER July 2012.

(ATMERPIER)Y R _F——HF—H1EX%E  The Companies Bill, which was introduced into LegCo in January 2011,

 BRARRBIERES/NE (MAKERES  encapsulated the hard work and efforts of the Companies Bill Team (which
REBLEEEMNARNEABHER) B-FF/X  comprises officers from the Financial Services and the Treasury Bureau

I
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and the Registry) since mid-2006. Owing to the multiplicity and complexity
of the issues involved, it took the Bills Committee on the Companies Bill
more than 16 months to deliberate on the proposed initiatives, relevant
policy considerations and drafting technicalities, and to scrutinise the
provisions of the Bill clause by clause. The Bills Committee held 44
meetings lasting a total of more than 120 hours during the process, and
it deliberated on controversial and difficult issues that included, among
others, the headcount test, clarification of directors’ duties, introduction
of a “responsible person” formulation to lower the prosecution threshold,
rules concerning directors’ conflict of interest, expansion of the simplified
reporting regime, introduction of a new compound offer regime, and
alignment of offences and penalties.

To facilitate the implementation of the new legislation, the Administration
has introduced 12 pieces of subsidiary legislation into LegCo to provide for
the administrative, technical and procedural matters, following two phases
of public consultation on the draft provisions between September and
December 2012. A subcommittee was set up by LegCo to scrutinise the
subsidiary legislation in February 2013. The subcommittee held a series
of meetings to examine the provisions clause-by-clause and the legislative
process was completed by July 2013.

The successful completion of the rewrite project ensures that the
infrastructure of Hong Kong’s company law will continue to best serve the
needs of Hong Kong as an international business and financial centre. It

also reinforces Hong Kong’s competitiveness as a place to do business.
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“EB-ZFRATEMEKL AT TR
BEEAREMEEREAAEIMEEEES
RSB NEFE > BERLRERE—T
R L ERIBERNTIFRR

EBREZ 5 AREMEEEF EREHRR
BAEKEYEANEE - RABENEEHE
H T AREMERGEMRRK ) - EELER
ROEHEA24NFEFEMRE » #EH "5
MH, ~ EFAAFEM - "EREH, elgmk
BT RRRE - HEHAREMRB MR - U
KA E BB (AR - LIE
BENE T RUNEMARNEF > MKRER
MREH Y EBNEXEEHE -

TEAEZTF » BMMBA—ELERRSUE R ER
BOERPT - MR A —ERENEFIPT » &
ENERABR-NANOFARSTMER
429,070 FMAR  BI”FE—=F=AK%
1,067,434F/ARERIR—IF -

BE—NN=ENWFE > BL9,784EH AR
AL o K > B162,277TE/AR ML ;
MUEFHRNEBRILARNFEEBBRE—
INEFA

The year 2013 sees the twentieth anniversary of the establishment of the
Companies Registry and my sixth year as the Registrar of Companies and
General Manager of the Companies Registry Trading Fund. It is high time
that | take this opportunity to review the development, and achievements,

of the Registry over the years.

In the past two decades, the Registry has undergone substantial changes
to its operations and the way it delivers its services. The more remarkable
ones include the implementation of the Integrated Companies Registry
Information System (ICRIS); provision of round-the-clock e-Search
Services at the Cyber Search Centre; the introduction of the e-Registry,
e-Incorporation, e-Monitor, e-Reminder and e-Filing services; the launch
of the Company Search Mobile Service and, most recently, the enactment
of the new Companies Ordinance. These achievements have transformed
the company incorporation and registration processes and, more
importantly, the corporate regulatory regime in Hong Kong.

During the past 20 years, we have progressed from being a paper-based
registry to an advanced electronic one, and the Companies Register
has grown in size, from having 429,070 registered companies on the
Companies Register in 1994 to 1,067,434 companies by the end of March
2013.

In 1993-94, 59,784 new companies were incorporated. Last year, 162,277
were incorporated; and the incorporation timeframe could be as short as

within one hour for electronic applications.
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In 1993-94, all searches on company records had to be conducted at the
Registry’s premises, and search results were provided within the same day.
Now, over 99 per cent of company searches are conducted online, and

company records are provided instantaneously.

In the past 20 years, the number of company documents filed with the
Registry increased from 1,252,953 in 1993-94 to 2,293,355 in 2012-13,
with the processing time reduced from more than 16 days to less than 24
hours.

The launch of the one-stop electronic company incorporation and
business registration service in 2011 was in particular a major milestone
in the history of company incorporation in Hong Kong, as the new
service transformed a paper channel into a fully electronic one, reduced
incorporation time to less than one hour and made Hong Kong one of the
leading jurisdictions in terms of the ease of company registration. The new
service helped Hong Kong to leap from the eighteenth to the sixth position
out of 183 economies in the “Starting a Business” rankings in the World
Bank Doing Business Report 2011. Despite stiff global competition, Hong

Kong retained the same position in the Doing Business Report 2013.

Locally, the Registry won the Silver Prize in the Departmental Service
Enhancement Award (Small Department Category) under the Civil Service
Outstanding Service Award Scheme 2011. Our One-stop Electronic
Service for Companies Incorporation and Business Registration was
awarded the Best Public Service Application (Transformation) Gold Award
in the 2012 Hong Kong ICT Awards. Aside from this, the Hong Kong
Council of Social Service honoured us with the title of “Caring Organisation”
for the fourth consecutive year; whereas the Hong Kong Chamber of Small
and Medium Business presented us with a Best SME’s Partner Award for

the fifth year running.
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In order to achieve our mission of being a world-class Registry, we have
also been consolidating and fostering our ties with our counterparts in
Mainland China and around the world. The Registry is a founding member
of the Corporate Registers Forum, an international organisation formed
in 20083 to provide its registry members with opportunities to exchange
experience and best practices. We served as the Forum’s President
in 2006, and we have been its Treasurer since 2008. We also signed
cooperation agreements with the Market Supervision Administration
of Shenzhen Municipality, the Beijing Administration for Industry and
Commerce, and the Ningbo Administration for Industry and Commerce in
2010 and 2011.

Given the numerous initiatives undertaken by the Registry in past years,
| would like to pay special tribute to my colleagues, who have unfailingly
taken on one challenge after another. | am grateful for the tremendous
support they have rendered to me since | took office in August 2007. |
am really proud that, over the years, they have continued to demonstrate
their determination to surmount every difficulty along the way in order to

enhance our infrastructure and deliver quality services to our customers.

| must also record my heartfelt thanks on this occasion to the members of
the legislature and all who have contributed to the enactment of the new
Companies Ordinance, in particular the Standing Committee on Company
Law Reform, colleagues of the Department of Justice and members of the
Companies Bill Team, consisting of colleagues from the Financial Services
and the Treasury Bureau and the legal officers of the Registry, for all their
hard work and great efforts.
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We aim to bring the new Companies Ordinance into operation during the
first quarter of 2014. To this end, the Registry has been preparing itself
to take up the new roles and functions prescribed by the new legislation.
We have been overhauling our information system, devising new policies
and procedures, designing new forms, and preparing to launch publicity
programmes to promote understanding of the new legislation. While the
tasks involved are major, we will spare no effort to ensure that the transition
to the new regime will be as smooth as possible for all concerned.

We look forward to the new chapter of corporate regulation.

With your support, we will make it a success!

¢€

Ms Ada LL Chung, JP
Registrar of Companies and
General Manager, Companies Registry Trading Fund
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The new Companies Ordinance reinforces Hong Kong’s position as a world-class place
to do business.
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The Background

Since 1984, the Government and the Standing Committee on Company
Law Reform (SCCLR) have been reviewing the Companies Ordinance on
a regular basis in order to update its content, with the aim of enhancing
Hong Kong’s corporate governance regime and ensuring that it satisfies
the changing needs of the local business environment. The reviews of
the Ordinance have resulted in a number of recommendations on various

legislative amendments, some of which have been implemented.

The piecemeal approach to amending the Ordinance nevertheless has
its limitations and it has been clear that a comprehensive overhaul of the
Ordinance is needed. Moreover, many major common law jurisdictions
have reformed their company law during the past two decades, and
rewriting the Ordinance would offer an opportunity to make reference to
such developments taking place around the world.

With the support of the Legislative Council Panel on Financial Affairs,
a comprehensive rewrite of the Companies Ordinance began in mid-
2006. The rewrite of the Ordinance has been undertaken by a dedicated
Companies Bill Team consisting of officers from the Financial Services and
the Treasury Bureau and the Companies Registry. Four advisory groups
consisting of experts in related fields and representatives of relevant
professional and regulatory bodies were also set up specifically under the
SCCLR to help formulate proposals and recommendations concerning
amendments to various areas of the law.

In its work, the Companies Bill Team also took into account the views and
recommendations of the SCCLR and a joint Working Group formed by the
Government and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
that had closely scrutinised the accounting and auditing provisions.

Following five rounds of public consultation and continuous exchanges
with stakeholders concerned over the years, the Companies Bill was
finalised and introduced into the Legislative Council (LegCo) on 26 January
2011.
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Implementing the New Companies Ordinance

Passing of the New Companies Ordinance

Shortly after the Companies Bill was introduced into LegCo, a Bills
Committee was formed by LegCo in February 2011 to scrutinise the
Bill. After 44 meetings lasting a total of more than 120 hours, the Bills
Committee completed its clause-by-clause scrutiny of the Companies
Bill in June 2012. In the process, the Committee also considered over
850 Committee Stage Amendments, as well as near 700 consequential

amendments that would be required to the existing law.

The new Companies Ordinance, which consists of more than 900 sections
and 11 schedules, was passed by LegCo on 12 July 2012 and gazetted
on 10 August 2012.

The key issues deliberated by the Bills Committee included, among others,
the “headcount test”, the introduction of a new offence in respect of
auditor’s report, the new formulation of “responsible person”, accessibility
to information on residential addresses of directors and full identification
numbers of individuals, directors’ duty of care, rules concerning directors’
conflict of interest and the qualifying conditions for simplified reporting. A

list of members of the Bills Committee is at Appendix D.
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Standing Committee on Company Law
Reform

The Standing Committee on Company Law Reform (SCCLR) was set
up in 1984 as a non-statutory advisory body to advise the Financial
Secretary on amendments to the Companies Ordinance and other
related legislation when experience shows them to be necessary to
meet the changing needs of local business environment. The SCCLR
is currently chaired by Mr Anderson Chow, SC, who took up the
chairmanship from Mr Godfrey Lam, SC, JP, on 11 January 2013. The
Registry provides secretarial support to the SCCLR. A list of SCCLR
members for 2012-2013 is shown in Appendix E.

Subsidiary Legislation

Our aim is to bring the new Ordinance into operation in the first quarter
of 2014. Prior to that, we need to enact various pieces of subsidiary
legislation to provide for the administrative, technical and procedural
matters for the implementation of the new Ordinance. Following two
phases of public consultation on the draft provisions between September
and December 2012, we introduced 12 pieces of subsidiary legislation
into LegCo by batches beginning from February 2013. A subcommittee
was set up by LegCo to scrutinise the subsidiary legislation (please refer to
Appendix F for its membership) and completed the legislative processes
by July 2013. These 12 pieces of subsidiary legislation are as follows :-

e Companies (Words and Expressions in Company Names) Order
to prescribe a list of words and expressions, the use of which in a

company’s name would require prior approval;

e Companies (Disclosure of Company Name and Liability Status)
Regulation to regulate the display and disclosure of company names at
a company’s office and in its communication documents, etc.;
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Implementing the New Companies Ordinance

Companies (Accounting Standards (Prescribed Body)) Regulation to
specify the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants as the
body for issuing or specifying accounting standards with which financial
statements must comply;

Companies (Directors’ Report) Regulation to set out the information to
be contained in a directors’ report;

Companies (Summary Financial Reports) Regulation to provide for the
detailed requirements concerning summary financial reports;

Companies (Revision of Financial Statements and Reports) Regulation
to provide for matters concerning the voluntary revision of financial
statements and relevant reporting documents by a company;

Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation to set out the detailed disclosure requirements for information
on payments relating to a director’s services and dealings in favour of
directors in the notes to financial statements;

Companies (Model Articles) Notice to prescribe three sets of model

articles for companies to adopt at their volition;

21



22

0 IONCIEESEID)

o (ATRE (BREREEIA) BE) 3T
AR5 B2 A A T BTR RO A RITER AT HE

o (B (FERBAR) REY - AARIES
EieE (ATMESF) FB16HMEMERSE
H

. (AT (ER) BH) - ERSERAR:E
RREESAINERRBEER &

e (AR (ARATEFERF) FEEFAR
) - FIRBEBRARATEREER ERERRE
Fra9#R 81 o

I VNSIESSTY

W ALEERS) EEEENEEZTEEN C B
BINAREEES  TEEH  BRREERK
ENEATEPBELAL - E—FRIABBER
FEEGEEMERRORHEE D - LTS
BT (ARG BB EZMEEX -

e Company Records (Inspection and Provision of Copies) Regulation to
prescribe the arrangements relating to access to company records kept

by companies;

e Companies (Non-Hong Kong Companies) Regulation to provide for the
detailed procedural matters for implementation of Part 16 of the new

Companies Ordinance;

e Companies (Fees) Regulation to set out the fees payable to the Registrar

of Companies and miscellaneous fees; and

e Companies (Unfair Prejudice Petitions) Proceedings Rules to provide for
the procedural rules for court proceedings in respect of unfair prejudice

petitions.

The new Companies Ordinance

The new Companies Ordinance aims to achieve four main objectives,
namely to enhance corporate governance, facilitate business, ensure
better regulation and modernise the law, thereby strengthening Hong
Kong’s competitiveness as a major international business and financial
centre. The ensuing paragraphs highlight some of the major initiatives and

changes which the new Ordinance will bring about.
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Implementing the New Companies Ordinance
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To foster shareholder protection, the new Ordinance expands the scope
of unfair prejudice remedy, introduces more effective rules to deal with
directors' conflicts of interests and requires the conduct of directors to
be ratified by disinterested shareholders' approval. One of the more
controversial issues involved in this respect is in relation to the so-called
“headcount test”, pursuant to which a majority in number of members
present and voting is required for a resolution to approve a scheme of
arrangement. Under the new Ordinance, for a takeover offer or general
offer to buy back shares, including a privatisation scheme, the headcount
test is replaced by a new requirement that the number of votes cast
against a resolution to approve the scheme must not be more than 10 per
cent of the votes attached to all disinterested shares. The new provision
also provides that a dissenting member might be ordered to pay legal
costs only if his or her opposition to the scheme was considered to be

frivolous or vexatious.

Under the existing Companies Ordinance, there is no provision on
directors’ duty of care, skill and diligence and the common law position in
Hong Kong is not entirely clear. The new Ordinance clarifies the standard
of directors’ duty of care, skill and diligence by introducing a statutory
statement in the law to provide guidance to directors. The new provision
stipulates that a director must exercise reasonable care, skill and diligence
and sets out a mixed objective and subjective test in the determination of

the standard.
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The existing Companies Ordinance prohibits all public companies, as well
as private companies which are members of a group of companies of
which a listed company is a member, from appointing a body corporate
as their director. There is no restriction for other private companies. The
new Ordinance requires, on top of the current restrictions, that private
companies must have at least one director who is a natural person to
enhance transparency and accountability. There will be a grace period of 6
months after the commencement of the new Ordinance for compliance.
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To save compliance costs while maintaining an appropriate level of
transparency in a company'’s financial reports, new provisions have been
included in the new Ordinance to automatically allow companies that
meet specified size criteria to prepare simplified financial statements and
directors’ reports. Larger private companies that do not meet the specified
size criteria would also be entitled to prepare simplified reports if their sizes
do not exceed a higher threshold, provided that members holding 75 per
cent of the voting rights so resolve and no member objects.

With a view to ensuring better regulation, the new Ordinance has lowered
the threshold for contravention by officers of companies by introducing a
new concept of “responsible person” to replace the current formulation of
an “officer in default”. Under the new formulation, a responsible person
is an officer of a company who authorises or permits, or participates in a
contravention or failure. The effect of the new formulation is that it will no
longer be necessary to prove that the officer acted “wilfully” in breaching
the relevant requirement.
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Implementing the New Companies Ordinance

The new Ordinance also introduces a new offence in respect of an
auditor’s statutory duty to make two specified statements in an auditor’s
report, i.e. that the auditor is of the opinion that the company’s financial
statements are not in agreement with the accounting records in any
material respect, and that he fails to obtain the necessary and material
information or explanations for the purpose of the audit. After extensive
deliberation in both the Bills Committee and at the full Council meeting,
the relevant provision was passed by LegCo to become section 408 of the
new Ordinance, under which a person commits an offence if the person
knowingly or recklessly causes a required statement to be omitted from
the auditor’s report.

With a view to modernising the law, the new legislation abolishes par value
for shares of all companies. Relevant concepts such as nominal value and
share premium are also abolished, and deeming provisions are included to
ensure that contractual rights defined by reference to par value and related
concepts in existing documentation will not be affected by the abolition of
par value. The new regime simplifies the accounting entries and provides
more flexibility for companies in structuring their capital. This is in line with

international developments in comparative jurisdictions.
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The new Ordinance also abolishes the need for a company to have
a memorandum of association. The articles will contain most of the

provisions previously set out in a memorandum.

The major initiatives introduced by the new Companies Ordinance are set
out in Appendix G.

As one of the initiatives, the new Ordinance also contains provisions on a
new arrangement for the inspection of personal information of directors
on the Companies Register, which seeks to strike a reasonable balance
between satisfying public need to access information and protecting
privacy. The new arrangement was introduced after public consultation in
2009 and was approved by LegCo after deliberation by the Bills Committee
in 2012. However, some stakeholders and certain sectors of the
community expressed diverse and new comments on the issue in the first
quarter of 2013 as we were finalising the subsidiary legislation to provide
for implementation details. In view of the complex legal, privacy and
operational issues involved, and following discussion with the LegCo Panel
on Financial Affairs at its meeting on 8 April 2013, the Administration will
accord priority to the tasks necessary for commencing the new Ordinance
in the first quarter of 2014 as scheduled, and consider the matters relating
to the new inspection arrangement thereafter. Accordingly, the provisions
in the new Ordinance concerning the new inspection arrangement will not

be included in the commencement notice.
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Implementing the New Companies Ordinance

Preparing for the Implementation

The Registry aims to make the transition to the new regime as smooth as
possible. The new Ordinance contains detailed transitional provisions for
this purpose. Where there are major changes — for example, the abolition
of par value for shares or the abolition of the memorandum of association —
the new legislation has detailed deeming provisions to ensure that existing
companies can make the transition to the new regime without difficulty.

In readiness for the new regime, the Registry is overhauling its information
systems and reviewing its policies, forms and operational procedures.
New database and workflows are being designed to accommodate new
procedures, new services and new categories of companies. Over 90
forms would be specified for the implementation of the new Ordinance. A
comprehensive publicity campaign has been launched and will intensify
towards the commencement date to ensure that our stakeholders are
aware of the changes brought about by the new Ordinance. A series of
seminars will be organised and circular letters will be issued to over one
million registered companies to publicise the major changes. Information
booklets and pamphlets will also be available at the Registry’s offices and
website for public access.

To conclude the legislative work for implementation of the new Ordinance,
in the fourth quarter of 2013, the Administration will —

° make a commencement notice for bringing the relevant provisions of the
new Ordinance into operation; and

e update the Schedules to the new Ordinance to provide for, among
others, consequential amendments to newly-enacted legislation as
necessary.

Meanwhile, the Registry will ensure that its staff are ready for implementing
the new Ordinance. Internal briefing sessions on the new statutory
requirements and procedures will be organised before the new law comes

into operation.

The Registry will spare no efforts in ensuring a smooth transition.
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Marching into a new era with 20 years’ solid experience and outstanding achievements.
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Use of electronic signatures
for certificates of incorporation
to speed up the dispatch of
certificates and the updating
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Establishment of the Companies Registry as a Government department on 1 May

1998, and as a trading fund department on 1 August 1993
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Launch of
Companies
Registry's
website
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Launch of online search service in respect of
company names and document indices for
subscribers
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Award of contracts for the
implementation of Phase | of
ICRIS and the provision of
microfiche and paper document
conversion services to develop
a new integrated system for the
delivery of electronic services
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Installation of
interactive telephone
enquiry system as a
service enhancement
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Introduction of deregistration
for defunct, solvent private
companies
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Enhancement of the services provided under
CROPS, including a new service for delivering
microfiches to customers through couriers
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Enactment of the Companies
(Amendment) Ordinance 2003 to
introduce one member companies
and, among other things, facilitate the
implementation of Phase | of ICRIS
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Completion of the conversion of
approximately 67 million frames of

A" BRI 10E 4 microfilmed documents into digitised
10th Anniversary of the Registry images
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Enactment of the Companies (Amendment) Ordinance
2004 to improve the prospectus regime to facilitate
market development, enhance the remedies available
to minority shareholders, modernise the registration
regime for non-Hong Kong companies and streamline
incorporation procedures
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Introduction of 25 new and 25 revised specified forms
to cater for new filing requirements
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Implementation of Phase | of ICRIS and launch of electronic search services
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Enhanced communication
with customers and
dissemination of the
Registry's new initiatives
and latest developments
through the e-News
subscription service on
the Registry's website
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Partial transfer of the Registry’s
enquiry hotlines to Integrated Call
Centre (now known as “1823”) to
provide more direct and efficient
responses to general and common
enquiries by call agents
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Commencement of the rewrite of the
Companies Ordinance FIARE M HIE2006
Hosted the Corporate Registers Forum 2006
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Introduction of one-stop service for company
incorporation and business registration
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Extension of the operator services for the Registry’s
enquiry hotlines handled by Integrated Call Centre to
24 hours a day

EAREFEmIR AR BENRREFRRREFIRIRE
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Provision of free Annual Return e-Alert service and
Annual Return Filing Calculator on the Registry’s
website
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Implementation of new provisions concerning non-
Hong Kong companies to modernise the registration
regime and enhance the disclosure requirements for
non-Hong Kong companies
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Shortening of the target time span for incorporation of
a local company from six working days to four working
days
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Expansion of the Index of Directors to include
particulars of reserve directors
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Introduction of new incorporation forms for local
companies
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Introduction of the Companies Bill into the
Legislative Council
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Launch of new electronic services at the
e-Registry
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Signed a Cooperation Agreement with the Beijing Municipal
Administration for Industry and Commerce
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Signed a Cooperation
Agreement with the Ningbo
Municipal Administration
for Industry and Commerce

NIRECEMEREBRER
Promulgation of the Companies Registry Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy Statement
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Signed a Cooperation Agreement with the Market
Supervision Administration of Shenzhen Municipality
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Commencement of Phase Il of ICRIS

B AQRRGIER) BRNARE
Launch of Public Consultation on the Draft
Companies Bill
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Passage of the Companies Bill by Legislative Council, which was
subsequently gazetted as the new Companies Ordinance
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New Electronic Servioes
for pompanies
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Implementation of
Phase Il of ICRIS
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Promulgation of the Companies Registry Corporate Governance
Policy Statement
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The Registry wins the Silver Prize in the
HHA T EMAREARRTE ; Departmental Service Enhancement
Launch of Company Award (Small Department Category)
Search Mobile Service RR T AREMRRE EMART ) HIBEE under the Civil Service Outstanding

Commencement of Phase IIB of ICRIS Service Award Scheme 2011.
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The Registry is awarded the Best Public Service Application
(Transformation) Gold Award for its “e-Registry - E-Incorporation
and One-stop Service for Company Incorporation and Business
Registration” in the Hong Kong ICT Awards 2012.

HONG KONG ICT AWARDS
2012 FHEMR@EMAEE

RERsE T 201 2F /N R ERREEE
The Registry wins the "2012 Best SME's Partner
Award"

REREBENFLEE "FOREE ) 258
The Registry has been awarded the logo of
Caring Organisation for 4th year in a row.
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The Registry’s 2010-11 Annual Report is
awarded an Honourable Mention in the 2012

Welcome to CRF 2013
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A delegation led by the Registrar
of Companies attends the
Corporate Registers Forum 2013
in Auckland, New Zealand. The
Registrar gives a presentation
on “Does Registry Ease Provide
Opportunity to Defraud? Case
Study — Hong Kong”.

Best Annual Reports Awards organised by ARIRRAT CRRMERB) it IET )

the Hong Kong Management Association.

Ordinance by batches

Introduction of subsidiary legislation made under the new Companies
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Registration of Companies in Hong Kong

The administration of the registration of companies in Hong Kong dates
back to 1865 when the first Companies Ordinance was enacted. Before
1865, there were no companies locally incorporated or registered in Hong
Kong. Companies operating in Hong Kong at that time were foreign
companies or other forms of business vehicles registered in other places.
The operation of those companies incorporated elsewhere and established
their offices in Hong Kong were governed by British law.

In 1865, a Companies Registry was established pursuant to the provisions
of the newly enacted Companies Ordinance 1865 and its establishment
embarked the company incorporation and corporate regulatory regime
in Hong Kong. The Registry was then administered by the Registrar of
the Supreme Court. With the establishment of the Office of the Registrar
General under the Registrar General (Establishment) Ordinance 1949,
the function of the Registry was then transferred from the Supreme Court
to the Registrar General’s Department. The Registry was eventually
established as an independent government department on 1 May 1993
with the Companies Registry Trading Fund established on 1 August in the
same year. The Registry then became one of the pioneer trading fund

government departments.

The Registry is very conscious of the very important role it plays in the
business and commercial life of Hong Kong to ensure that the territory
reinforces its competitiveness as a major international commercial and
financial centre. The Registry is also fully aware of the development of
the global economy and the benefits of providing ever more efficient and
high quality services for company registration and inspection of company
information to customers around the world. To this end, we have made
strenuous efforts in the past 20 years to expand the nature and scope and
enhance the level of our services to the public.

The implementation of a continuous development programme since the
establishment of the trading fund has led to revolutionary changes in
the modes of the Registry’s operation and delivery of its services. One
of the major initiatives was the phased implementation of the Integrated
Companies Registry Information System (ICRIS), which brought the
Registry into a new era of paperless operation and provision of new
electronic services to the business community.
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Celebrating the 20" Annivel

Since the implementation of Phase | of ICRIS from February 2005, all paper
documents received by the Registry have been converted into digitised
images which are then routed to the processing sections for data entry,
system verification and online scrutiny by its staff. The Registry was one
of the pioneer government departments whose core business activities
relating to company incorporation, registration of documents, company
search and enforcement are performed by its staff vide digitised images
and company data as recorded electronically. A 24-hour electronic search
services with helpdesk support was also introduced at the Cyber Search
Centre in February 2005. Over 99 per cent of company searches are now
made online.

The launch of the e-Registry and electronic incorporation service under
Phase Il of ICRIS in early 2011 made it possible, for the first time, for a
company to be incorporated online anywhere anytime in the history of
company incorporation in Hong Kong. The one-stop electronic company
incorporation and business registration service, which allows applicants
to incorporate a company and apply for business registration in one go,
not only facilitated the start of business in Hong Kong but also sharpened
our competitive edges against comparable jurisdictions in company
registration. It further enhanced Hong Kong's competitiveness as a place
for starting a business and helped Hong Kong to leap from 18th to 6th
position out of 183 economies in the “Starting a Business” indicator in
World Bank’s Doing Business Report 2011. Hong Kong maintained the
same position in the 2013 Report.

To facilitate statutory compliance and save operating cost, electronic
services for submission of specified forms reporting changes of company
particulars, including annual returns of private companies, were
implemented at the e-Registry by stages since February 2011. Other
service enhancement initiatives implemented in the past two years by the
Registry include the introduction of the e-Monitor service, Annual Return

e-Reminder service and the Company Search Mobile Service.

The enactment of the new Companies Ordinance in July 2012 marked
another major achievement of the Registry. The new Ordinance, which
is expected to come into operation in the first quarter of 2014, will bring
the Registry into a new era of corporate regulation and commence a new

chapter in the history of company registration in Hong Kong.
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TEEBEEHETHT
Key Workload Statistics

Apart from the changes to its operation and service delivery, the Registry
bore witness to the growth of the local economy as reflected in the
increase in its workload during the past 20 years. Compared to 1993-
94, the workload in 2012-13 increased substantially, with company
incorporations surging from 59,784 (in 1993-94) by 171 per cent to
162,277, number of documents received for registration surging from
1,252,953 by 83 per cent to 2,293,355, and inspection of 3,525,723
image records (compared to 1,936,701 microfiches in 1993-94).

The Registry responded to the ever-growing business volume by striving
for higher productivity. It also endeavoured to meet escalating aspiration

on quality of services by setting high performance benchmarks.

In 1993, when the Registry was established, the Registry had a staff
complement of 361. There were 377,727 companies on the Companies
Register and it took 7 working days to incorporate a company. By the
end of March 2013, the Registry had 365 staff. There were 1,067,434
companies on the Companies Register and a company can be
incorporated online in less than one hour. The time required for registration
of documents was reduced from 16 working days to less than 24 hours for
electronic forms while image records can be downloaded almost instantly
at the Cyber Search Centre.
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Companies Incorporated
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Documents Received for Registration

BRI
Document Image Records Searches

T2

U222

1,252,963

1,936,701"

0

YRR

1,000,000 2,000,000 3,000,000 4,000,000

Microfiches of companies record were provided for public inspection in 1993-94

B 199394 ) 2012-13
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Publication

of the “Study
Report on History
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Incorporation in
Hong Kong”
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Celebrating the 20"

Celebrating the 20th Anniversary

The year 2013 marks the 20th anniversary of the establishment of the
Registry. To celebrate two decades of growth and achievements, an
Organising Committee has been set up to plan and organise a host of
celebration activities. The 20th Anniversary Logo Design Competition held
in December 2012 kicked-start our celebration activities.

Among other activities, a study report on the “History of Company
Incorporation in Hong Kong” was published in July 2013. Professor Goo
Say-hak, Director of the Asian Institute of International Financial Law,
University of Hong Kong, was commissioned by the Registry to conduct
the study. The report records the history of company incorporation in
Hong Kong since the enactment of the first Companies Ordinance in 1865

and the development of the Registry over the years.

NRFMER20EAFERRE
20th Anniversary Dinner

The series of celebration activities culminated in the Registry’s annual
dinner held on 6 September 2013. Registry’s staff and honourable guests
Kicked off by an
opening speech delivered by the Registrar of Companies and followed by a

gathered together to celebrate this spectacular event.

toast of celebration proposed by Management Board members, the dinner
was filled with many happy memories including slide-shows of memorable
photos, special performances by fellow colleagues of the Registry, games
and prizes presentation.

' Anniversary
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The Registry is committed to continuously enhancing the level and quality of our services.
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Achievements and Highlights 2012-13

HAFEERIR Mat8lF—%8
Financial Performance Statistics at a Glance

BE=ZA=1+—HILMEE For the year ended 31 March

Pl—E&Jtsr HKS million

600 100% N
162,277 EHF AR M — F9EH13,523 - &
P—RZ K EHEKRARIHES2% -
532.1
162,277 new companies were incorporated — an
500 e average of 13,5623 per month. Approximately 82 per
: cent of them were one-member companies.
400
/ ()
@
300 50%
200 216.6
166 RRARWAT TR IME34,012(0 — FHEET
ER139 - BERINE=Dw _HEMESH -
34,012 charge documents were received — an average
0 0% of 139 per working day. Around two-thirds of them
5011-12 ° were related to landed properties.
3373 Sees Sees 3
T ° ° I3
ifi’cj? : :QQQ: : .0.0: .000 00
- BB A ks < :
Profit after Tax 30,550 NEENRIRIE (ARKRHDY £2916 45|
g EEAETREEEE e ©
Rate of Return on Average Net Fixed Assets 30,550 defunct companies were struck off under

section 291 of the Companies Ordinance.



BHE_S—=F=B=+—H #£B
1,067, 434E AN R EA R B ML ©

1,067,434 local companies were on the
public register, as at 31 March 2013.

1,51 AR TLUBE T UL -

1,511 companies were dissolved by
liquidation.

31,727 E RN EEBFEEEDNFAAA
ARE (ARG F291AAGREE
H:H' o

31,727 defunct solvent private
companies were deregistered under
section 291AA of the Companies
Ordinance.

N

BREATERHH235,2395R °

235,239 searches of company
particulars were made.

BEREFRSILAI17,747R

317,747 searches of the Directors’
Index were made.

TE—_—F—=HFF » 152,308,264 NXBIEAERE — V55
H192,355 AKX ©

The Registry’s website was visited 2,308,264 times during 2012-13 —
an average of 192,355 visits per month.



FERECEMPALERXHR AL RRAFE LN HH2,293,3551

#%3t793,525,7235% ° — FHEEIIER9,36017 °

3,525,723 searches of document 2,293,355 documents were received

image records were made via the for registration — an average of 9,360
- Cyber Search Centre. per working day.

R LERARERRL
KBEI9% °

1823 BB ARSI EE T
H7H60,2455% — 58 H5,0205% °

The 1823 received 60,245 enquiries
on the Registry’s services — an
average of 5,020 per month.

More than 99 per cent of
company searches were
made online.

BE_F=F=-A=1T—"R0 FTEEFERMEERSE
EH M ERN "I REFEM ., REAT7,17645]
B - e HBEIRER] PIRRAFHRKA T RREAFH
WEREBEBTIRD 1 R H23,655%5]F -

As at 31 March 2013, the Registry’s electronic news
subscription service, which provides regular information
updates on its services and initiatives, had 7,176
subscribers. Meanwhile, the Annual Return e-Alert
service, which issues email reminders for the filing of
annual returns, had 23,555 subscribers.

AR B AR EENS A TR EE54,3645R
— 5 H4,5305R ©

The Enquiry Hotline took 54,364 calls — an average

of 4,530 per month. B EAETREXIERABMFTEHNMERA -
Key workload statistics for 2012-13 are shown in Appendix A.
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Business Operation and Performance
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16.4% - AR ER—BEEHEKNATHME
82%

AR AIIATR

Incorporation

Incorporation and Dissolution of Companies

In 2012-13, a record number of companies was incorporated. 162,277
local companies were incorporated in the year and the number of local
companies on the register amounted to 1,067,434 by 31 March 2013. On
average, 13,523 new companies were added to the Register every month,
approximately 16.4 per cent higher than previous year. Out of these new
companies, about 82 per cent were one-member companies.
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R (AT B201ERBIRETE B
31,72 TEABEEE A EENOLAATIRE
CATMERBIY H291 AAEBESTHR © TIlES
FRBHATHE51 10 -

During the same period, 63,795 companies were dissolved. Out of these
dissolved companies, 30,550 defunct companies were struck off under
section 291 of the Companies Ordinance; 31,727 defunct, solvent private
companies were deregistered under section 291AA of the Companies
Ordinance; and 1,511 companies were dissolved by liquidation.
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BE-E——F—A#H "sHM5, XT°"=F——  With the launch of the e-Registry in January 2011 and the introduction
F=A#EH "R AT EGEZSCIR  of one-stop service for company incorporation and business registration
i ARAE—/NERZER "FEMS, £ in March 2011, a company can be incorporated online via the e-Registry

f_EREMaks - WEERIRRREETS - within one hour and starts business immediately.
XAEEER Registration of Documents

EE—"EFE—ZFE RBRAEZRMNXMHE  In2012-13, the number of documents registered with the Registry has

BIEEE 2,293,355/  EIRINT.5% » BIIEZRR  increased by about 7.5 per cent to 2,293,355. This represents an average

AR E TR EE T ER9,360147 © of 9,360 documents received every working day for registration by the
Registry.

T ETFRIEZRNRETHIXHHE

Average number of documents received each working day

BRXARBLHEBEABERMMAES  The documents delivered for registration included memoranda and articles
SRMEI - ATNESTMWMENETERELUBA  of association, notifications of appointments and changes of directors and
= EMESE R FROBHE « RPDECE  secretaries, changes of registered office addresses, returns on allotments
WMERMBEFERBRE and annual returns, etc.
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Number of searches of document image records during 2012-13

Compared with the year before, the number of electronic searches of
document image records in 2012-13 has risen by 8.3 per cent to 3,525,723.
The number of searches of company particulars has also surged by 21.1
per cent to 235,239. For search of Directors Index, the number was
317,747, slightly higher than the figure in previous year.

Information available for public search at the Registry’s Cyber Search
Centre (CSC) (www.icris.cr.gov.hk) includes particulars of companies and

digitised images of documents. Particulars of new companies incorporated
through the e-Registry are available for public inspection immediately upon
incorporation. Over 99 per cent of the searches were made online through
the CSC which provides user friendly and convenient online company
search services via the internet on a 24-hour basis throughout the year.
Customers can view the search results online or download copies of the
records on payment of the required fees. In addition, ordered certified true
copies of documents or records may be delivered by post or courier to
customers or collected in person at the Registry’s Public Search Centre.

Customers can register as CSC registered online users by paying an
annual fee and enjoy lower rates for searching image records. They can
also enjoy the convenience of having the search fees deducted from their
prepayment accounts. As of 31 March 2013, over 2,200 customers
including financial institutions and professional firms had registered as
online users and given very satisfactory feedbacks to the services. For
unregistered users, popular payment methods such as credit card

payment or PPS by Internet are available for settling search fees online.

o escoe oee \\J
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EF—"E—ZFF EXAEETHAT
LA 34,01240 - MBI —FIEINT.3% - F13
Kk BETFRERIAREECHFLE39
7 BERNB=2 _HEMERR -

TAGEE T R RS AR E B B

Average number of charges received each working day

Registration of Charges

In 2012-13, 34,012 charges created by companies were registered with
the Registry, 1.3 per cent higher than the previous year. On average, 139
charges were submitted to the Registry every working day. Out of these,
about two-thirds were related to land property.
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Newly Launched Services
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e-Filing Services

Since February 2012, the electronic filing channel of the Registry has been
extended by phases to include the most commonly filed specified forms
under the Companies Ordinance. The phased approach of launching
e-Filing services is to ensure a smooth transition of service. Among the
forms involved, the electronic submission service for the annual return,
which is the most commonly used statutory form, was introduced in
August 2012 in the final phase. To facilitate electronic submission of
annual returns, key particulars of companies as at their anniversary dates
of incorporation as registered with the Registry are extracted and pre-
filled to the e-Forms for users to review and make latest changes before
submitting the e-Forms online. The launch of the electronic annual returns
also marked the successful completion of Phase Il of the Integrated
Companies Registry Information System.

Annual Return e-Reminder

Every year, all companies incorporated or registered in Hong Kong are
statutorily required to submit their annual returns to the Registry for
registration within a specified timeline. Since an annual return provides

51



52

RITA AR

EMERER  RRLERERNZ AL HIEE
NRBRREREAFRBRERNORE - FBLERE
EHNRORBERNET - ARBRRAEFH
WERNATRHERBNE - DIREEERR
REURIZITE

REAETRIAFHERERRYE  FETAE
FRERYENN " AFFRHEKeRT L BRI -
ERMEERER - AR &M% BLTRA
FEMEARRE ) A BRALARAT
SRARBMAEENEAFR - WEIHARRKA
PFRBRTARRRAFHRREINETEA -
TEARF , FAAE "5, ;TR T EFEH
HelR ) R BUALFITEERIARUEIIER
FERHERNEBTEXN - P ARBENAN
BERE BA TidEMS, UBTFTHNERAF
SEE

AR EMRBMRARES

EEEHERFRIABDREAREL A&
RZF—_FRXABHERARDEMRB IR RHE
DIRFETEMRE - ARA L AIFERFHEEE

L L]

[CR| tmnas

(41 - T

i .

aWzEER

important information of a company on an annual basis, the Registry has
over the years undertaken a number of measures to enhance compliance
with the requirements for filing annual returns. These measures include
publication and distribution of information pamphlets; sending reminders
to companies in default of filing annual returns, and, where appropriate,
taking prosecution actions.

Along with the launch of the electronic submission service for annual
returns, the Registry also provides its customers with a new Annual
Return e-Reminder Service free of charge. With this new service, all
local private companies having a share capital which have registered
Company User Accounts with the e-Registry will automatically receive
electronic notifications for filing annual returns on their anniversary dates
of incorporation. Individual Users can also subscribe to the e-Reminder
Service at the e-Registry to receive electronic notifications for filing annual
returns of companies which they specified. Customers can easily log
into the e-Registry for electronic submission of annual returns through a
hyperlink provided in the notifications.

Company Search Mobile Service

Given the increasing popularity of smartphones and mobile devices, the
Registry has taken the initiative to enhance the e-Search service with the
introduction of the new Company Search Mobile Service in June 2012.




RERFREREBRE - BBRERAREME
RBEERARER - BRRBAESELR -
DNRATEAFIRERTNATER

Enhancing our Services

Members of the public can use this new search service to conduct some
basic searches on company information anytime and anywhere with their
smartphones and mobile devices. It not only facilitates the conduct of
business in Hong Kong but also enables members of the public to obtain
the most up-to-date company information at their fingertips.

AR 7% AGE

ABFME-—EBRDIRESHENERNR
B LUIGEPINRE - RhEFEFPESANREN
AR AR K IRBIRE - RESFHERRRE
ERRIFRR A F——E-—ZHE &%
BB A RIBIERR - FHBEIMEB

Performance Pledge

The Registry is fully committed to providing efficient and quality services
to better serve the needs of customers. To keep customers informed of
the Registry’s performance pledges and service standards, the Registry
publishes its performance targets and results on an annual basis. In 2012-
13, the Registry has exceeded all its performance targets, details of which
are contained in Appendix B.
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Business Review

BERNEE Financial Objectives and Highlights

NTEMER—HNA=FENAB—HBRERE  The Companies Registry was established as a trading fund on 1 August
BRBIAZHRILERES - (BEESHKE 1993 by a resolution passed by the Legislative Council (LegCo). As

) (FBA30EMRE » KENRIRBREERA - required by the Trading Funds Ordinance (Cap. 430), the Registry operates
ETBEAINER FEE > BER under commercial principles on a self-financing basis, aiming to:-

o FEBEBHEHSHKRA RS RERIEA—E] o meet all expenses incurred in the provision of services out of the income

N of the Registry; and

ST T

B E Turnover and Profit
Financial Summary BZE=A=+—HIWEE For the year ended 31 March
. KE&EBITE HKS million

KE&E#BItat HKS million 2011-12
= 600 100%
S 483.2 532.1 o
Turnover ‘

500
E{/ﬁa@g 239.9 249.0 400
Operating costs

300 50%
ST BEA
Bﬁ%ﬁ o 216.6 253.6
Profit after tax

200
BT/ A THRANRS 100
Dividends paid / payable to 216.6 253.6
the Government

0 0%
B 2011-12 2012-13
EEEEFFELOHRE
Rate of return on average 54.9% 63.6%
net fixed assets
= LG
- Turnover

BB AR
I

Profit after Tax

O EEEE TR ER®RE

Rate of return on average net fixed assets
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Building a Better Organisation

e achieve a reasonable return on the average net fixed assets employed.
The target rate of return for 2012-13 was 6.7 per cent as determined by
the Financial Secretary.

Financial Performance

The audited annual accounts of the Registry together with the Report of
the Director of Audit are set out in Appendix C. The accounts are prepared
in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles and will
be tabled before LegCo as required by the Trading Funds Ordinance.

[ ASEMAESIE Incorporation fees
P B4&s®mEERE Annual Registration fees
B =R REaKE Search and copying fees

P s Es2E Charges registration fees
- BEELARBARIEER Fees for administration and collection services

B =(5EF Other fees
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EERRA
Operating Costs

- BT #H Staff costs
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ErRAmEEEARREEN (ARSI Eit
% BREFNACLRITIEABRE XA
B hnoR BRI - HARBHEERBEMER
B8 -

I =589 Operating expenses

- &R #EE Depreciation and amortisation

Despite a more volatile external environment in 2012-13, the Registry
continued to achieve fruitful results for this period. Turnover and profit after
tax were $532.1 million and $253.6 million respectively, representing an
increase of 10.1 per cent and 17.1 per cent respectively when compared
to those of 2011-12.

Over the years, the Registry has been able to operate on a self-financing
basis and accumulate adequate reserve for ongoing development and
contingent needs. As at 31 March 2013, the Registry had a total of
$673.3 million cash in hand and deposits with banks and the Exchange
Fund. The Registry’s liabilities mainly composed of the monetised value
of the untaken leave of its staff, prepayments from registered users of
Cyber Search Centre and e-Registry, taxation and accrued expenses. This
healthy reserve enabled the Registry to assume new roles and perform
additional functions following the implementation of the new Companies
Ordinance, and to strengthen its infrastructure continuously for provision of

quality services to the public without loan financing.
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TR = -UFEREEITEA
Forecast for 2013-14 and Beyond
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In spite of the robust performance in 2012-13, the Registry has adopted
a prudent approach in projecting its business ahead, bearing in mind that
the business volume of the Registry is vulnerable to any external or local
economic fluctuations.

Following the relatively stable environment in the latter part of 2012, the
external economy has turned more volatile in 2013 under such headwinds
as the eurozone economy saddled by the debt overhang, the continuous
uneven growth in the United States hampered by the payroll tax hike and
automatic spending cuts, the continued sluggishness in demand in the
advanced economies and the like. All of these would continue to put a

drag on economic activities in Asia including Hong Kong.

With these external factors, the Registry’s financial performance in 2013-
14 is likely to be more uncertain. The very high number of company
incorporation in 2012-13 may not be sustainable in the coming year. For
other major activities of the Registry, a moderate growth for registration of
charges has also been registered as a result of the anticipated slowdown
in business and property market. Nevertheless, given the surge in the
total number of companies on the Register in recent years, the number of
annual returns to be filed with the Registry and the number of searches in

the coming year are expected to rise correspondingly.

In the medium term, it is anticipated that the Registry’s business will be
generally stable from 2014-15 onwards with a moderate annual growth.
The only exception is as regards the number of charges to be registered
in 2014-15, which is expected to drop sharply by about 20 per cent,
consequent upon the changes in registration requirements under the
new Ordinance as registration of charges against cash deposits will no
longer be required. In the circumstance, the business performance of
the Registry in these years will unavoidably be affected. It will also be
necessary to invest additional resources for the Registry to take up new

roles and functions under the new Ordinance.
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Although the Registry anticipates new challenges arising from the
implementation of the new Ordinance, with strict financial control and
ongoing enhancement of productivity, the Registry has confidence in
achieving the target rate of return on average net fixed assets employed
and maintaining an adequate financial capability to meet any unforeseeable
adverse business fluctuations. In this regard, the Registry needs to retain
sufficient reserve to carry out the following initiatives:-

e enhancing the IT infrastructure to facilitate the implementation of the new
Ordinance;

e preparing for the Registry’s new roles and new functions under the new
Ordinance;

e implementing programmes for publicising and promoting the new
Ordinance to facilitate its smooth implementation; and

e reviewing and formulating the longer term development plan of the

Registry’s IT infrastructure.
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Companies Registry's Organisation Chart

Building a Better Organisation

Organisation

As at the end of March 2013, the total headcount of the Registry was 365,
of which 291 are civil servants, and 75, contract staff. To cope with the
increased workload, the headcount was slightly increased compared with
that in previous year.

AR AT
Registry Manager

BlEREEA (1)
Deputy Principal
Solicitor (1)

FERRE

Business Manager
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RENRREEAR

Senior officers of Headquarters

ANBI BRI RGBT E AR
Managers of the Company Formation
and Enforcement Division
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Building a Better Organisation

AREMEBNEEAS
Managers of the Public Search Division

AR EEAR
Managers of the Registration Division
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DErE -

Staff Recruitment

The Registry recognises the importance of formulating a good manpower
plan and maintaining a team of high-calibre and professional staff members
for providing quality services to customers, and for sustaining the further
development of its role in the future. In this respect, its Departmental
Establishment Committee, composed of senior officers of the Registry,
considers staffing proposals and makes recommendations to the Registrar
of Companies for the formulation of the Registry’s manpower plans.
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Building a Better Organisation

Training and Development

The Registry formulates a Departmental Training and Development Plan
every year to support the training and development of different grades of
officers. Training managers are appointed to monitor and implement the

training programmes for officers.

The Registry attaches great importance to the culture of continuous
learning and self development. To this end, the Registry encourages staff
to attend training programmes organised by the Civil Service Training
and Development Institute of the Civil Service Bureau, and nominates
staff to attend local and overseas seminars and conferences to broaden
their perspectives and widen their exposure. For new recruits, a two-
day Induction Programme is conducted to provide them with a better
understanding of the Registry and its work. Furthermore, the Registry
offers financial support to staff members who wish to attend external work-

related courses and examinations.

For the year ending March 2013, a total of 583 training days have been

achieved.
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The Registry organises the Best Service Award and the Best Counter Staff Award Contest.

Staff Motivation and Recognition

The Registry has implemented a Staff Motivation Scheme to promote the
awareness of, commitment to and ongoing enhancement of performance
pledges. The Scheme consists of three awards, namely, the Registry
Performance Award, Best Service Award and Best Counter Staff Award.

As the Registry has exceeded the targets of all its pledges for 2012-
13, the Registry Performance Award was granted to all eligible staff in
recognition of their efforts and excellent performance. In 2012, “Change of
Name of Local Companies (e-Submission)”, a service provided by the New
Companies Section, was voted by our customers as the winner of the Best
Service Award. The Best Counter Staff Award has helped instil a sense of
commitment in staff to provide courteous and efficient service. Last year,
14 winners of the Best Counter Staff Award were selected by our counter
customers in 2,492 voting forms returned.
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Building a Better Organisation

Communications with Staff

The Registry values communications with its staff and encourages
communication to flow across all level of staff. The Departmental
Consultative Committee, which consists of management and staff
representatives, holds regular meetings to discuss work-related issues
and gather opinions from staff. The Registrar of Companies also meets
divisional managers from time to time to discuss work directions,
strategies and initiatives of the Registry for the years ahead. Furthermore,
staff newsletters are published quarterly to enhance communication and

bonding among staff across different divisions.

AFFH RS A
Companies Registry
Staff Newsletter
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With a view to enhancing the Registry’s overall effectiveness and
productivity, the management strives to encourage all staff members to
perform to their full potential. Staff appraisal interviews are conducted
annually to discuss staff performance and to recommend training
for their development needs. These face-to-face interviews serve as
good opportunities for supervisors and subordinates to discuss career

prospects, development plans and share ideas and thoughts.

The Registry has a well established mechanism to handle staff complaints.
The Registry Manager has been appointed as the Departmental Staff
Complaints Officer to ensure that every complaint is properly handled, and
that any necessary remedial action is taken promptly.
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Companies Registry’s Corporate Governance Policy Statement
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To instil a culture of good governance, the Companies Registry Corporate
Governance Policy Statement was promulgated in May 2012. The
Statement establishes the Corporate Governance Framework of the
Registry and gives guidance on how the governance principles are applied
in the Registry in order to uphold the highest standards in this respect.

Companies Registry Corporate Governance Framework

BIRERNEEER

High Standards of
Corporate Governance
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Robust Internal Control and
Risk Management Systems
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The text of the Corporate Governance Policy Statement is provided in
Appendix H. As a corporate regulator, the Registry recognises the utmost
importance of good governance which plays a decisive role in ensuring
the efficiency and effectiveness of the Registry’s operations. Proper
governance underpins not only the public’s confidence and trust in the
Registry’s capability and integrity but also the level of satisfaction of its

employees.



AR EZENAEERE

Corporate Govemance and Social Responsibility

Internal Control and Accountabilities
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Management Board

Board and Committees

The Registry is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance and effective internal control by establishing a comprehensive
governance framework composed of the Management Board and four
specific committees.

The Management Board is responsible for managing the Registry’s
business affairs and setting strategic directions with the aim of achieving
its vision and mission. It is headed by the Registrar of Companies and
composed of all directorate officers of the Registry. A Board Meeting is
conducted on a monthly basis, or more frequently if necessary, to discuss,
review and monitor the Registry’s major initiatives and activities and to
ensure that all procedures and regulations are properly followed.

The Board has set up four committees with clear and specific terms
of reference to oversee the Registry’s operation, enhance efficiency
and ensure proper management, covering the areas of development,
departmental establishment, integrity management and investment
strategy. The committees meet regularly to discuss and evaluate existing
procedures and strategies and make recommendations to the Board for
continual monitoring and enhancement of good corporate governance
practices.

KWERIEESSR
Investment Strategy Committee

MEEHERES

Integrity Management Committee
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Rules and Regulations

While operating as a trading fund department under the Trading Funds
Ordinance (Cap. 430), the Registry is still required to comply with
applicable departmental guidelines and relevant Government rules and
regulations when dealing with procurement and other matters. Internal
operational guidelines and circulars are promulgated and re-circulated
regularly to staff members to reinforce their awareness of the requirements.

Corporate and Business Plan

Every year, the Registry sets out in its Corporate and Business Plan both
short- and long-term strategies for achieving its business and policy
objectives. The annual Plan is submitted to the Secretary for Financial
Services and the Treasury for approval, and once approved, it serves
as the benchmarks for evaluating the Registry’s performance and the
guidepost for its development.

Within the year, regular meetings with the Permanent Secretary for
Financial Services and the Treasury (Financial Services) and representatives
of the Financial Services Branch of the Financial Services and the Treasury
Bureau were conducted to review the Registry’s performance and discuss
any major operational issues and legislative initiatives. Representatives
from the Treasury Branch of the Financial Services and the Treasury Bureau
also meet with the Registry to monitor and evaluate the Registry’s financial
performance biannually.

Audit and Report

The Registry prepares its annual accounts in accordance with the generally
accepted accounting principles. The accounts are audited by the Director
of Audit and tabled in the Legislative Council together with the Registry’s
annual report. After tabling, the audited accounts and annual report are
uploaded onto the Registry’s website for public access.
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Corporate Governance and Soclal Responsibility

Integrity Management

The Registry’s staff members are required to abide by and comply with
the Civil Service Code which sets out the core values to endure the test of
good governance and shape the present culture and character of the civil
service. These values include:-

(1) commitment to the rule of law;

(2)  honesty and integrity;

(3)  accountability for decisions and actions;
(4)  political neutrality;

(5)  objectivity and impartiality; and

(6) dedication, professionalism and diligence.

As a department whose core business involves the provision of public
services, the Registry is dedicated to upholding the integrity and high
standards of conduct of its staff. The Integrity Management Committee
is responsible for coordinating and monitoring the Registry’s initiatives in
this area. As part of its ongoing efforts to promote high ethical standards
among staff members, the Committee draws up an Integrity Management
Programme Action Plan every year. The Action Plan provides clear
guidance on the Registry’s commitment to and efforts in integrity
management.
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The Registry Manager is appointed as the Registry’s Ethics Officer to
oversee the planning and execution of the annual Action Plan. The
initiatives set out in 2012-13 Action Plan were successfully implemented.
During the year, in-house video shows and talks were organised to alert
staff members to the importance of integrity and provide guidelines and
good practices on how to prevent corruption. Staff members are also
encouraged to attend conferences, seminars and workshops organised by
the Civil Service Bureau on this subject.

The Registry also recognises that proper procedures for handling staff
complaints are essential for integrity management and hence has
promulgated procedures that allow its staff members to raise concerns in
confidence about possible improper treatment, and breaches of policies,
regulations or code of ethics. All the staff complaints will be handled by
the Registry Manager who is designated as the Staff Complaints Officer of
the Registry. A monitoring system with prescribed procedures is in place
to ensure that all complaints are handled in a fair and appropriate manner.
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Risk Management and Business Continuity
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IT Security

The Cyber Search Centre, the Company Search Mobile Service and the
e-Registry are now providing round-the-clock online company search,
incorporation and filing services for the Registry’s customers. A secure,
stable and reliable computer platform equipped with high-level security
measures is therefore essential to ensure the smooth operation of
such services. The Development Steering Committee, chaired by the
Registrar of Companies and comprising senior members of the Registry, is
established to oversee the IT strategies and functions and ensure that the
IT initiatives align with the Registry’s corporate mission, policies and long-
term business development and objectives.

Meanwhile, the Registry also engages independent auditors to conduct
regular IT security risk assessments and security audits. The auditors
will ensure that the Registry’s IT infrastructure is properly protected and
complies fully with the prevailing standard. Improvement measures and

recommendations are adopted to follow the industry’s best practices.



76

BHTE THEMPHREZRIA]
i MR EERSIRREBUR
FFE7R

EFRESREEBABENRE  RAEE
ITHRBLIMRERRZ— - BEIHEMNRR
BURMIE RV BA S B A AR R R AER
ERENRRERHEROTERERE -
Rt REBETHE] T EREMBHRRR
B~ EMREFHEBIESI MR NE
AMBHRRZIET - N g PR REREL
BRKIES| > DN E T Y MEMR T RRE
BABHNEZMY - RETEEBEERER
BRERBETIRELRISHINEREN -

EREEFRTE

RBERRBEREERFERNER AR - KR
FE] Y RBIFEEFE (FTE]) - BOOER
—BRARER  DAUREEZNEF - 58
BESEE - BBk DIBRAE AT
BREFIRHEZNINRELRE - FHEITEE
—EEFERRR  LUEERDERRKLNA
AE ° ItHh AR EHETEFREREE > U
ARERER  BREFERATBRFLS -

Updates to Staff on Security Awareness and
Compliance with Various Security Policies and
Instructions

Maintaining excellent and high-quality services to the community is one
of the Registry’s long-term goals shared among its staff members. Staff
awareness of and compliance with security policies and instructions can
definitely minimise the adverse impacts from any system breakdown and IT
incident. For this purpose, the Registry has developed IT Security Policy,
Guidelines on Information Security Incident Handling, and End Users’
Instructions on IT Security for its staff. These policies and guidelines are
reviewed and circulated periodically to reinforce staff’s understanding on
the importance of information security and personal data protection. Major
updates of regulations are brought to the attention of the Registry’s staff
members through refresher courses and circulars.

Business Continuity Plan

In order to reduce the risk to business in the event of system disruptions,
the Registry has developed a business continuity plan which endeavours
to ensure that critical operations continue to be available during any
disruptions. It includes plans, measures and arrangements to ensure the
continuous delivery of critical functions and services to customers and a
disaster recovery system to minimise data loss. Disaster recovery drills
are carried out periodically to test the recovery procedures and to ensure
proper functioning of the disaster recovery system.
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Communication and Transparency
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Communicate with Customers and the Public

One of the core values of the Registry is to listen to our customers and
take account of their needs and expectations when shaping the types and
quality of services which we deliver. To this end, the Registry has well-
established communication channels to collect the views and opinions

from different customer groups.

The Registry also engages itself in regular conversation with its customers.
Throughout the year, the Registry pays courtesy visits to customers from
time to time. Seminars and briefings are also held to brief stakeholders
on legislative or procedural changes. Some of the seminars are jointly
organised with professional bodies such as the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries. These events provide prime opportunities to explain new
requirements, promote our new services and collect feedback to refine our

services to the business community.

Customer Liaison Group

The Companies Registry Customer Liaison Group (CRCLG) is one of
the most important channels connecting the Registry and its customers.

NEFMER
FEstE/NE
The
Companies
Registry
Customer
Liaison Group
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Apart from senior Registry officers, CRCLG comprises representatives
from various user groups including the Law Society of Hong Kong, the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries, the Hong Kong Association of Banks,
and some customer representatives. CRCLG meets regularly for members
to exchange views on the Registry’s services and initiatives. It is also a
useful and effective forum to brief customers on the Registry’s policies and

procedures.

Registry Website

To ensure that all customers and stakeholders are kept abreast of the
latest statutory and procedural requirements, the Registry makes extensive
use of its website (www.cr.gov.hk) to deliver up-to-date information.
Comprehensive contents including our core business activities, changes
in legislation, filing requirements and our development programme are

regularly reviewed and updated.

Specified forms, publications such as the Registry’s Annual Reports,
reports of the Standing Committee on Company Law Reform, consultation
papers for legislative exercises and external circulars issued by the Registry
are easily accessible and available for downloading on the Registry’s
website.

A dedicated thematic section entitled the “New Companies Ordinance” has
been set up on the website to provide information and the latest updates
on the implementation of the new Ordinance.

Enquiry Hotline

The Registry’s Enquiry Hotline ((852) 2234 9933) is set up for answering
enquiries about its services round the clock. Callers can also obtain
information pamphlets from it by fax. In addition, customers can also call
the Registry’s Help Desk ((852) 8201 8273) for technical advice for using
the electronic services. The Help Desk operates on a round-the-clock

basis for the convenience of customers.
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Corporate Governance and Soclal Responsibility

Code on Access to Information

As a public organisation, the Registry adheres to a high standard of
transparency and openness. It recognises the need for members of the
public to be well informed about the Registry, the services it provides
and the basis for policies and decisions which affect individuals and the
business community as a whole. The Registry fully complies with the

Code on Access to Information in this regard.

Evaluation Mechanism

The Registry values customers’ feedback and suggestions. Throughout
the year, the Registry has continued to gather comments, suggestions
and opinions from different groups of customers through well-established
channels as the comments are valuable to the Registry in reviewing the
existing business processes and for the purpose of planning initiatives that
will result in further improvement to its services.

At the same time, the Registry publishes its performance pledges annually
to update customers on its performance standard and achievements
in providing quality services during the year. The Registry also collects
customers’ feedback and opinion via suggestion and comment forms,
annual Customer Services Survey and the Helpdesk of the e-Registry and

e-Search Services.
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Liaison with Other Registries

In view of the rapid development in company regulatory and registration
regimes over the world, the Registry has been active in exchanging ideas
and sharing experience with registries of other areas. For this purpose, the
Registry continues to foster and develop collaborative relationships with
counterparts in the Mainland and other jurisdictions.

During the year, delegations from the Registry visited registries of other
jurisdictions and attended international forums to establish and foster links
with them:-

e September 2012 — Three officers of the Registry attended the 2012
Ningbo-HK Economic Co-operation Forum (B /& KEB & 1EwIE2012 ) in
Ningbo, China; and

e March 2013 — The Registrar and five officers of the Registry attended
the Corporate Registers Forum 2013 in Auckland, New Zealand and the
related workshops in Melbourne, Australia and Auckland, New Zealand.

In 2012-13, the Registry received visitors from regulatory authorities and
professional bodies from different parts of the world. They included:-

e July 2012 — A delegation from the Securities and Exchange Commission
of Pakistan;

e November 2012 — An official from the Public Authority for Investment
Promotion & Export Development, Oman;

e December 2012 - a delegation from the Agency for Business
Registration, Ministry of Planning and Investment of Vietnam; and

* The Registry also received delegations from Mainland provincial
departments and institutions.
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Corporate Governance and Soclal Responsibility

Corporate Registers Forum

In March 2013, the Registrar of Companies led a delegation to attend
the Corporate Registers Forum (CRF) Annual Conference held in
Auckland, New Zealand where 181 delegates from 55 jurisdictions and
representatives from the World Bank were present to explore global best

practices for corporate registers.

The CRF is an international non-profit making organisation formed by
administrators of corporate registers. It holds an annual conference where
registry professionals from different jurisdictions get together to share their
experience, benchmark their performance and practices, and acquire
knowledge on the present and future operation of corporate registration
systems. The Registry actively participates in the activities of the CRF, and
has been appointed as its treasurer since 2008.
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The Registrar of Companies led a delegation to attend the Corporate Registers Forum Conference 2013 in New Zealand
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B e S 1 e .u' - e A
BBEAR - BAR SEXR—KRE
Trip to Nam San Wai wetland

Corporate Social Responsibility

The Registry is committed not only to the provision of quality services
to its customers, but is also dedicated to the sustainable growth of the
community. It therefore accords high priority to social and environmental
sustainability commitments to its customers, staff members and the
community as a whole. To this end, the Registry has adopted a Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy Statement since 2010. The Statement sets
out the framework for discharging its corporate social responsibilities. The
text of the statement is provided in Appendix .

Caring for Staff Members

The Registry organised a series of social and recreational activities for its
staff members in 2012-13 to enhance relations among staff members and
to improve their physical well-being. These activities included a trip to Nam
San Wai wetland and a Christmas party-cum-lunch buffet. Special interest
classes on miniature clay art, light clay art, cake making, horticulture,
flower arrangement, pizza making and macaron making were also held
with success. To instil a sense of belonging in staff members, their family

members were also invited to join some of these activities.

" iR
Companies Registry




Corporate Governance and Soclal Responsibility

2012 B E B B HE e
2012 Christmas Party-
cum-Lunch Buffet

|| smg s e A oRms e

Light Clay Christmas Bear Card Holder Making Class

P4
. . '

MR RN FREUEYE
Miniature Clay High Tea Set Making Class

FREAESER & - RISAERRRLETE
Christmas Log Cake Making Class
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HFTEIKLTE
Horticulture Class on
Chinese Narcissus Bulb
Carving

MELERAIE
Flower Arrangement Class

FREA S FRERIFIL

Macaron Making Class

ME G S EFLhEE
SUEHE
Pizza Making Class
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Occupational Safety and Health

The Registry is committed to providing a healthy and safe workplace
for all its staff members. It established a Safety Committee to formulate,
implement, monitor and review safety policies and measures. Regular
occupational safety inspections are conducted to identify potential hazards
on its premises, and any identified areas are to be followed up promptly
and effectively. Moreover, staff members are encouraged to attend relevant

training courses to promote their occupational safety awareness.

EEBRRERBPORETEN T—H - +H/\, BREEEENTES
A talk for staff members conducted by the Christian Family Service Centre
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The Registry is awarded the Gold Award for Volunteer Service in 2012

86

Caring for the Society

The Registry actively participated in a number of voluntary and charitable
services throughout the year, and its contributions to the community were

well recognised.

The Registry Volunteer Team strives to support the underprivileged, the
elderly and to serve the entire community through its active participation in
a variety of voluntary services and charitable activities.
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KEETSHENRTNEEEE Voluntary and Charitable Activities Participated by the Registry Staff
Members:

NHREERE2012
Dress Casual Day 2012

SUERTERIRENEY
Preparing gifts to distribute
during voluntary activities

MREABEREN RONERENERERE
Calling on the elderly living in Kowloon City during
Tuen Ng Festival
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RER TR LS SIS
Celebrating Christmas with students of Hong Chi Morningjoy School, Yuen Long

FREDFTIAR EE
RORE

Visit senior
citizens at an
elderly home
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A Lunar New Year
Party for children with
learning disabilities

Corporate Governance and Soclal Responsibility

FRILEZDH R 1 REBFES
EESARBMWERLRELEN
B
Celebrating Lunar New Year with the
elderly at the Jockey Club Wong Chi
Keung Elderly Community Centre in
Aberdeen

WEBEH R DIRKGHEE ENEE AL

. Collecting canned food to support the impoverished
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~ WAI-AA

The Registry has been awarded the Caring Organisation Logo since 2008
and is now marching into the 5th year of Caring Social Responsibility
participation.

AN

m 2008-12

caringorganisation

Awarded by The Hong KODS Cciuncil of Social Service
A SRFBHE 858

To encourage adoption of web accessibility in the community, the Office
of the Government Chief Information Officer has jointly organised the Web
Accessibility Recognition Scheme (Scheme) with the Equal Opportunities
Commission to show appreciation to local businesses and organisations
for making their websites easily accessible. The Registry takes part in the
Scheme and our website has achieved World Wide Web Consortium (W3C)
Web Content Accessibility Guidelines WCAG 2.0 Level AA standard and
has met all technical criteria for the Gold Award.

) l-iil_f
. R mmwmE

~ WCAG 2.0 2 Dl Wb For All

S
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T —=F"RZ+1TH  AEREABEEKFET  On 27 February 2013, the Registry joined hands with the Junior
BIESHEFAE  BFAP—RNIEY Achievement Hong Kong to host a one-day Job Shadowing programme.
sHE - EIESEENEMNEREBSEATHEIE  The programme was organised to expose young people to a real business
SEARARNEERTHRE @ AESTSMIFE  environment, to equip them for today’s and tomorrow’s job markets
e BREEIRK - BRAREEF Y1285 A and to encourage them to make an early start in planning their future.
24 ZMMRETFEMTA—RMWAEIL  The Registry sponsored 12 Fifth Form students who “shadowed” their
fE - workplace mentors as they went through a normal day at work.
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Environmental Protection

The Registry takes sustainable development and environmental protection
seriously. We are committed to maintaining a high level of environmental
awareness among staff members and pursuing environmental protection
through adoption of environmentally friendly technologies, minimisation of
possible adverse impact on the environment and continuing to enhance
the Registry’s environmental friendliness. Our goal is to improve the air
quality, reduce power consumption as well as recycle and reduce waste.
During the year, the Registry continued to reduce consumption of energy
and paper, and implement green procurement by purchasing green
products and reduce the use of one-off disposable items. In 2012, all
targets for key green measures were fully achieved by the Registry. Details
of these can be found in the electronic copy of the Environmental Report
2012 on the Registry’s website.

The electronic services for submission of specified forms under the new
Companies Ordinance are being developed and would be completed in
2013. With the increasing use of the electronic services at our e-Registry,
we believe that there will be further reduction in the use of paper by the

Registry and the business community.

On air quality, the Registry has obtained a rating of “Good Class” under
the Indoor Air Quality Certificate Scheme of the Environmental Protection
Department. To further improve our air quality towards a better working

environment, office plants are placed in the corridors and common areas

of the Registry’s offices from early 2013.
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Appendix A

—E-TE-—FETEFEMRIHETF
Key Workload Statistics for 2012-13

HEIA3HLEEE
Year to 31 March

®/ Of) Batt
%
Increase / (Decrease)

YNGRt Registration of New Companies
AT Local companies

— ARAT] — public companies

— BARQH — private companies

IEEBAT Non-Hong Kong companies
REIXGEER General Registration of Documents
Ziteslliapgis Documents received

FrUsEI AR sc Charges received

FREEBAZE Change of name notifications
BEERANE Voluntary liquidation notices
NEIEM Company Searches
BEXMHEECH  Document image records searches
ERATER Company particulars searches
EREERG Directors’ index searches

Bz Prosecutions

BHER Summonses issued

BIBRITE Striking Off Actions
HHREFBHNAT  Companies struck off

HsHRE Deregistrations
WHRSHEMAYAT  Companies deregistered

636 792 (13.4)
161,591 138,574 16.6
693 781 (11.3)
2,293,355 2,133,701 7.5
34,012 33,579 1.3
15,613 16,052 2.7)
906 955 (5.1)
3525723 3,254,565 8.3
235,239 194,250 211
317,747 316,618 0.4
6,374 6,200 0.8
30,550 27,158 12.5
31,727 28,623 10.8
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Number of Companies Incorporated

170,000

160,000

150,000

140,000

130,000

143,797

139,366

10-11

R EEHEHE

Charges Received for Registration

45,000

40,000

35,000

30,000

162,277

42,530

33,679

10-11

34,012

RZEEXHHE

Documents Receieved for Registration

2,300,000

2,200,000

2,100,000

2,000,000

1,900,000

2,293,355

2,133,401

1,949,675

ERX 4R G CER

Document Image Records Searches

3,600,000

3,600,000

3,400,000

3,300,000

3,200,000

3,100,000

3,000,000

3,625,723

3,254,565

3,178,276
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BRF5EIE R T{ERIR

Performance Targets and Achievements

2012-13 2013-14
THERE Bz
Achievements Targets
(B%) (BERER) .
201213 ) o BHEE BT
o1 REAE RBAKTE S FRES KT 1
R 75 BRFEKF BB T NT Bt Seni SOEpale
; . S 3 o ervice o
Service Service % Over 1 %
Standarg?  (Terdet) Leiel) Achieved SiEmeEe Meeting
% Meeting % Meeting Standard
Standard Standard
CATIERETE - BIMAERRIN
(expressed in working days unless otherwise specified)
EVNGIEES
Registration of new companies 2
S /N
local companies
1R AR A
paper submission 4 % 97 2 4 %
B st 108 br 9% 9 9 108 br %0
El= /NG|
non-Hong Kong companies 14 % 99 N 14 %
P VNS et
Change of names of local companies
TIEEQ%EEX# ) 4 95 99 4 4 95
paper submission
e LEs 1 r %0 9% 9 108 br 9%
NEXHER
Registration of general documents
TR AR AR X A
paper submission 6 0 99 9 6 90
8 R HRIARAR = =
e-Submission of specified forms 3% AN frs 0 8 8 AN frs %0
HicER
Registration of charges 8 0 % & 8 90
NE I EHEE R
Deregistration of companies
B LR RS ST R4
issue of approval letter 5 % 99 S 5 %




2012-13 2013-14
THRERR BiR

Achievements Targets

(B#%) (BEERR)

. \ ez
e EZE| N
2012-13 =Bz RRFE KT
= BRIFEAKIFRY  BRIEAKFEHN BRFSAKE 1 s

s}i%jie H&S%:\J/T;E gk IS 5 ?)}vtetr Service E,ﬁozm

S : (Target) (Actual) ) Standard ' .
tandard % Mestin % Meetin Achieved Meeting
it 9 ;i 9 Standard

Standard Standard

BGITIERFTE - BIMIBIERRSN

(expressed in working days unless otherwise specified)

8 LR Em

Online searches on the internet

RS AU T H
supply of image records of documents 5448 mins 95 100 5 548 mins 95
for download

REEMERNZERIAE 4
supply of certified copies of 3/\BF hrs 95 100 5 3/\BF hrs 95
search results 4

RELEE 4

supply of certificates 4 1 95 100 5 1 95

ELBREMPLEMR
Onsite searches at the
Public Search Centre

RS MIERNEISCA

supply of hard copies of 20738 mins 95 100 B 204388 mins 95
search results

RHEMERNZERIR

supply of certified copies of 3/NEF hrs 95 100 5 3/NEF hrs 95
search results

supply of certificates 1 95 100 5 1 95

EFRERRY (EiEHR IR )
Onsite submission of documents 20436% mins 90 100 10 2034 mins 90
(queuing time only)

BRI R FABERRIXMER o LR FIRBK TR AR AR LR -

The service standard for paper submission excludes the day of submission. The service standard for e-Submission is calculated from the time of submission.
AXEFTERATDEMEREBRERARDTMEE 03 -

Business Registration Certificates are issued by the Companies Registry for the Inland Revenue Department, together with Certificates of Incorporation.
BRBKFERARUEF A NRRNEZEAARZMEGAENRREENIERRE -

The service standard applies to specified forms which are submitted electronically and automatically processed by the Integrated Companies Registry
Information System.

NEEUB T RFES NEERMFHIRRE o

Time for delivery by post or by courier service is excluded.

¥ ZO—ZHZRBZHHIENEH

Launched on 20 February 2012
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B BERWE
Report of the Director of Audit

ERBATREBRRA
#F it &

B EA RS

T3+
HiEE

HERRCERRENSIBNE10151268A
VEMELBRSNYBRE - REYBRE
BER201363 531 AP BRRREBRER
Al EEN2EKER  BEEHRNESR
BE  UREBEHBCEME RN R
-

AR RS EE SRR MBI TSR R
REENSE

NREMELEERSBKEBERAEERR (88
BB (F430B)B1(DREEBYBHRS
HAIRBEEMPENMERSE  JEFEER
RLEHANEZES - UEYBHREAFEHER
HGES S EIEEGRE WA - EAE T

BETEIAVELE

BNEERREBNEHZSFYBRERFH
BER - BHERR (BEESEH) £7OIER
B BNETERETER - BEERERE
BTREBAE  WRELATERN - UEERE
EMBERER D NEBEMERERBRAL -

Audit Commission
The Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region

Independent Audit Report
To the Legislative Council

| certify that | have examined and audited the financial statements of the
Companies Registry Trading Fund set out on pages 101 to 126, which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2013, and
the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity
and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

General Manager, Companies Registry Trading Fund’s
Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The General Manager, Companies Registry Trading Fund is responsible
for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with section 7(4) of the Trading Funds Ordinance (Cap.
430) and Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal
control as the General Manager, Companies Registry Trading Fund
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on my audit. | conducted my audit in accordance with section
7(5) of the Trading Funds Ordinance and the Audit Commission auditing
standards. Those standards require that | comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.



B RATRFUENEBRM B REAEE
BNIRBEERNETRE - MEENEFIUR
RERTENRIFIET - BRI R EREFSEE R
BERMBRIFBEENERRANER - £
ERERRE > BETMEEEAZESRERE
MBI ERE BN AERZES - LIRS
EMEFERF - BUFFAHESHIANERZHA
MHEBERER - ETERTEARDZMES
BESRKEMRANS I BRNEBIE LT
EHMEFHEETNAEN - UIAFTEM B ®REK
AUERESS IR TN

BAEE  BFTEGHMENEEREXTENER
RENETEREMELR -

=
=47
2

PR REMBRRCEBEBYBRESE
AEEMAEMRRATTMELEEESRN
2013 3A3TAMMR REEZ A L FEN
EFEERLRENE  WERR (EEE2K
BI) BTGRFTRENITNLHEE -

FEEER
EHEPEERIFANNT)

B

FEEF
TR
AFEHAB26/E
201349RH10H

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the General
Manager, Companies Registry Trading Fund, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.

Opinion

In my opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Companies Registry Trading Fund as at 31 March 20183,
and of its results of operations and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the manner provided in section 7(4)
of the Trading Funds Ordinance.

LAU Sun-wo
Assistant Director of Audit
for Director of Audit

Audit Commission

26th Floor, Immigration Tower
7 Gloucester Road

Wanchai, Hong Kong

10 September 2013
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FFRESR

Annual Accounts

NRIFMESERES
BZE2013F3A31HIEMAFRER
Annual Accounts of the Companies Registry Trading Fund
for the Year Ended 31 March 2013

ZR (SEESEE) £7 (4) REBRER
Prepared and submitted pursuant to section 7(4) of the Trading Funds Ordinance



AREMEEEAEEZENRR
Companies Registry Trading Fund
Statement of Comprehensive Income

(BUBETTThFR) & BE2013F3831HIEEE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) Note for the year ended 31 March 2013
B Turnover 3) 582,135 483,191
BIERRA Operating costs (4) (248,986) (239,882)
EERF Profit from operations 283,149 243,309
EAMBA Other income (5) 18,612 14,241
ZEMERTEA Profit before notional profits tax 301,761 257,550
BENEH Notional profits tax 6) (48,149) (40,964)
FEZF Profit for the year 253,612 216,586
Hih 2w s Other comprehensive income — -
FEESENE Total comprehensive income for the year 253,612 216,586
BElE&E EDORE Rate of return on fixed assets @) 63.6% 54.9%

F-FLEE-REZNERAMBEREN—

The notes on pages 107 to 126 form part of these financial statements.
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ARG EEEE RN
Companies Registry Trading Fund
Statement of Financial Position

(BT ITST) FyEE 2013438 31H
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) Note as at 31 March 2013
| 2o R
JERENEE Non-current assets
W ~ B Property, plant and equipment @) 317,324 324,017
BIEE Intangible assets 9) 70,056 40,862
INERESTR Placement with the Exchange Fund (10) 109,315 103,518
496,695 468,397
nEEE Current assets
FEWIR SR N TR 308 Debtors and prepayments (11) 8,353 8,499
FEUS EA = A T IRFR Amounts due from related parties 719 927
RITHER Bank deposits 547,700 568,700
R RIRITHESR Cash and bank balances 16,286 12,914
573,058 581,040
it =L=] Current liabilities
IEFEWA Deferred revenue (12) (9,634) (8,187)
BFEZS Customers’ deposits 9,727) (8,908)
PETIRER Creditors (6,058) (5,872)
BB A TIREK Amounts due to related parties (53,689) (83,108)
BREGBHERE Provision for employee benefits (13) (54) (494)
FET =TT Notional profits tax payable (12,329) (10,092)
(91,491) (116,661)
MENE E R Net current assets 481,667 464,379
WEERETEIGE  Total assets less current liabilities 978,262

932,776
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NRGMEEEASIFEMR IR ()
Companies Registry Trading Fund
Statement of Financial Position (continued)

(BT ITST) (g M20134F3831H
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) Note as at 31 March 2013
JEiREaE Non-current liabilities
IRIERLFR Deferred tax (14) (11,680) (6,925)
B SRR BE Provision for employee benefits (13) (57,624) (53,919)
(69,304) (60,844)
BEE NET ASSETS 908,958 871,932
BA KR CAPITAL AND RESERVES
EERSEARN Trading fund capital (15) 138,460 138,460
REEF Retained earnings (16) 516,886 516,886
BERE Proposed dividend (17) 253,612 216,586
908,958 871,932

BB LEE-_AREZNERAMBHREN—ES

The notes on pages 107 to 126 form part of these financial statements.

¢.€

SEERATESRL Ms Ada LL Chung, JP
ARFMEESEESEKE General Manager, Companies Registry Trading Fund
“F-=FNATH 10 September 2013
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ARGEMREEASEREER
Companies Registry Trading Fund
Statement of Changes in Equity

EFRHER Balance at end of year 908,958

(LUBMEF 5T BZE2013F3A31HILERE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) for the year ended 31 March 2013
TEEFEFERR Balance at beginning of year 871,932 882,157
FEASHEHK S Total comprehensive income for the year 253,612 216,586
FRENKE Dividend paid during the year (216,586) (226,811)

871,932

F-FLEE-_AREZNERAMBREKN—

The notes on pages 107 to 126 form part of these financial statements.




AREMEEEALRERE
Companies Registry Trading Fund
Statement of Cash Flows

(BUBETTThFR) FEE BZE2013F3A31HILEFE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) Note for the year ended 31 March 2013
REEEERZ Cash flows from
HEiRE operating activities
EEREF Profit from operations 283,149 243,309
T S Y Depreciation and amortisation 20,960 18,207
FEMUIR R R TEN FRIER Decrease / (Increase) in debtors and 13 (3,848)
A /7 G0 prepayments
FEM B A TR Decrease / (Increase) in amounts due from 208 (323)
OB / 38 related parties
IRIEUARYIE AN/ CBid) Increase /(Decrease) in deferred revenue 4,542 (5,175)
BEIREE N Increase in customers’ deposits 819 2,909
FEANRFRAY Increase / (Decrease) in creditors 186 (2,708)
12 / CRiAY)
FE(SREE A TIRFRAY (Decrease) / Increase in amounts due to (29,419) 34,481
OB / & related parties
TEE @RI BAEAIE I Increase in provision for employee benefits 3,265 2,852
ENR2EFER Notional profits tax paid (41,158) (51,000)
REEEERZ Net cash from 242 565 038,724
HE35 operating activities — —_—
REREIERZ Cash flows from
HEiRE investing activities
BEEHRAIESLILEN  Decrease in bank deposits with original 5,700 63,201
RITEFRBD maturity over three months
IMNEE S FFRANIE I Increase in placement with the Exchange Fund (5,797) (103,518
S Interest received 15,650 12,498
EEME - R NEEY Purchase of property, plant and equipment (43,461) (7,922)
M EE and intangible assets —_— _
BEREIERZ Net cash used in (27,908) (35,741)
HE35E investing activities —_— _—
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NRGMREEESIREARER ()
Companies Registry Trading Fund
Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

(LUBETTTYIR) i BE2013E3831HILEE
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars) Note for the year ended 31 March 2013
REMEERZ Cash flows from
HERE financing activities
[SEN:ES Dividend paid (216,586) (226,811)
REMEERZ Net cash used in (216,586) (226,811)
HE 35 financing activities — —_—
HERERIEEMN Net decrease in cash and (1,929) (23,828)
i iREE cash equivalents
EFVYHNRER Cash and cash equivalents 18,215 42,043
ERBEE at beginning of year —_— _—
EFERNRER Cash and cash equivalents (18) 16,286 18,215
(RR=E at end of year _— _

F-FLEE—_RNEZWERAMBREN D -

The notes on pages 107 to 126 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes To the Financial Statements

(R4 RIRERASN - UBBTITASR)

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

1. 1%

BIADERTE1993F6 H30HMRIER (BER
ERPI) (F430%) %3~ AN6GHRER
RFE 0 1E1993F 8B 1 BRI AT EME
BERS (TEERS, ) - BEEER
FFRMRBERNE - DURERRARGE
MRELMER AR -

2. EFEEETEER

(a) MHEAERIZEMR

Ry BHmKERBEBARNDTR
AIRFBERNEBYBEREER
(LFZEHRE  BEPREEEgstam

NEBRBNAEERNERN BT

HEER RS ERNERE) R

R EEESHFMNERGBORRE

2T e

(b) WRBHRWER
AU BRENBRERS R ERA
B -

RRTEEBUEREERNRES
DEEEFRAE - AT RER - &
FHE - A REREFES IR
WEH  LIAEERSENWANES
A2 HRNE - ZFAET RBRENR
& BIZLUERRAEMERBRIER
THRABENERMSF] - M52
BHEMBEREEAMR2E > AISRA
ZEE RBRERFIEEREENR
SEMIREENER - AHERNE
HEREERHAR -

1.

General

The Companies Registry Trading Fund (“the CRTF”) was established
on 1 August 1993 under the Legislative Council Resolution passed
on 30 June 1993 pursuant to sections 3, 4 and 6 of the Trading
Funds Ordinance (Cap. 430). The CRTF provides its customers with
services and facilities to incorporate companies and to register and

examine company documents.

Significant accounting policies

(@) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), a collective term which includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(*HKICPA”). A summary of the significant accounting policies
adopted by the CRTF is set out below.

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The measurement basis used in the preparation of these
financial statements is historical cost.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
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The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.

There are no critical accounting judgements involved in the
application of the CRTF’s accounting policies. There are also
no key assumptions concerning the future, or other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the next year.

Financial assets and financial liabilities

()  The CRTF recognises financial assets and financial liabilities
on the date it becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are
measured initially at fair value, which normally equals to the
transaction prices, plus transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets or issue
of the financial liabilities.

(i) The CRTF’s financial assets consist of loans and receivables
which are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market and which the CRTF has no intention of trading.
They are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less impairment losses, if any.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and
of allocating the interest income or interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument
or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When
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(i)

calculating the effective interest rate, the CRTF estimates
cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial
instruments but does not consider future credit losses. The
calculation includes all fees paid or received between parties
to the contract that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or
discounts.

The carrying amount of loans and receivables is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to determine whether
there is objective evidence of impairment. If any impairment
evidence exists, a loss is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective
interest rate. If in a subsequent period, the amount of such
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be linked
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss is reversed through the

statement of comprehensive income.

Financial liabilities are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual rights
to receive the cash flows from the financial asset expire,
or where the financial asset together with substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred.
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled, or when

it expires.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment appropriated to the CRTF on 1

August 1993 were measured initially at deemed cost equal to
the value contained in the Legislative Council Resolution for the

setting up of the CRTF. Property, plant and equipment acquired

since 1 August 1993 are capitalised at their costs of acquisition.
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The following property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses (note

2(f):

- buildings held for own use appropriated to the CRTF on
1 August 1993; and

- plant and equipment, including computer equipment,
furniture and fittings, motor vehicles and other equipment.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of property,
plant and equipment, less their estimated residual value, on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows:

- Buildings 30 years
- Computer equipment 5 years
- Furniture, fittings and equipment 5 years
- Motor vehicles 5 years

The land on which the CRTF’s buildings are situated as
appropriated to the CRTF on 1 August 1993 is regarded as a

non-depreciating asset.

Gains or losses arising from the disposal of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, and
are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income at the

date of disposal.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets include acquired computer software licences
and capitalised development costs of computer software
programmes. Expenditure on development of computer
software programmes is capitalised if the programmes are
technically feasible and the CRTF has sufficient resources
and the intention to complete development. The expenditure
capitalised includes direct labour and cost of materials. Intangible
assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any

impairment losses (note 2(f)).
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Amortisation of intangible assets is charged to the statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the assets’
estimated useful lives of 5 years.

Impairment of fixed assets

The carrying amounts of fixed assets, including property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets, are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to identify any indication of impairment.
If there is an indication of impairment, an impairment loss is
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income whenever
the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value
less costs to sell and value in use.

Notional profits tax

() The CRTF has no tax liability under the Inland Revenue
Ordinance (Cap. 112).
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“the

However, the Government of

Government”) requires the CRTF to pay to the General
Revenue an amount in lieu of profits tax (i.e. notional profits
tax) calculated on the basis of the provisions of the Inland
Revenue Ordinance. Notional profits tax expense for the
year comprises current tax and movements in deferred tax
assets and liabilities.

(i) Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

(iiy Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.
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All deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the assets can be utilised, are

recognised.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of
the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that
it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised as services are provided. Interest income
is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest method.

Employee benefits

The employees of CRTF comprise civil servants and contract
staff. Salaries, staff gratuities, and annual leave entitlements are
accrued and recognised as expenditure in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by the staff. For civil servants,
staff on-costs, including pensions and housing benefits provided
to the staff by the Government, are charged as expenditure in
the year in which the associated services are rendered.
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For civil servants employed on pensionable terms, their pension
liabilities are discharged by reimbursement of the staff on-cost
charged by the Government. For other staff, contributions
to Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are charged to the

statement of comprehensive income as incurred.

Related parties

The CRTF is a separate accounting entity within the Government
established under the Trading Funds Ordinance. During the
year, the CRTF has entered into transactions with various
related parties, including government bureaux and departments,
trading funds and financially autonomous bodies controlled
or significantly influenced by the Government, in the ordinary
course of its business.

Cash equivalents

Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been

within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Impact of new and revised HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised HKFRSs
which are effective for the current accounting period. There
have been no changes to the accounting policies applied in
these financial statements for the years presented as a result of

these developments.

The CRTF has not applied any new HKFRSs that are not yet

effective for the current accounting period (note 22).
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3. EER 3. Turnover
HEXHELE Charges registration fees 15,776 16,388
NGRS I AVE= Incorporation fees 279,676 238,328
BERRKRELE Annual registration fees 137,076 129,331
ML HKE Search and copying fees 67,132 61,130
=B LARWIREE A Fees for administration and collection services 7,460 12,225
HihEHA Other fees 25,015 25,789
pik ] Total 532,135 483,191

4. EERAE 4. Operating costs
BT1&H Staff costs 174,528 165,324
—RREERX General operating expenses 52,159 54,675
FRRITEE A Central administration overheads 787 1,218
e S ey Depreciation and amortisation 20,960 18,207
BIER Audit fees 552 438
bk Total 248,986 239,882
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5. Other income

RITHEAFE Interest from bank deposits 9,814 9,282
INEESHERFE Interest from placement with the Exchange Fund 5,703 4,959
Hfth Others 3,005 —
3 Total 18,612 14,241
A EFER 6. Notional profits tax

(a) MEEUWHFATBRNBENEHAN

(@) The notional profits tax charged to the statement of

¢ comprehensive income represents:

AHAR K Current tax

KELZEFNBRNEBE Provision for notional profits tax for the year 43,406 41,437

FEEZREBE Over-provision in respect of last year (12) —
43,394 41,437

IEHEFR TR Deferred tax

R EEA KRR Origination and reversal of temporary differences 4,755 (473)

ZafER Notional profits tax 48,149 40,964
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(b) MIBEXHESH R RBERARETE (o) The reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit at
EIRA0T - applicable tax rates is as follows:
ZENEHBEIRF Profit before notional profits tax 301,761 257,550
BEBNERFZ16.5% Tax at Hong Kong profits tax rate of 16.5% 49,790 42,496
(20124 1 16.5%) (2012: 16.5%)
FFEBIE
“EF—"F—=FF—)X One-off tax reduction in 2012-13 (10) —
HERIBIE R
FEEEFRMARTIERE Tax effect of non-taxable revenue (1,619 (1,532)
TFELREE Over-provision in respect of last year (12) —
EERIEZH Notional tax expense 48,149 40,964
7. BEEBEEMERRE 7. Rate of return on fixed assets
BEEELREELR2EKE (RNEHE The rate of return on fixed assets is calculated as total
FMEWARFELZH ) RUEECEEF comprehensive income (excluding interest income and interest
B ERTE WAL ANERE - expenses) divided by average net fixed assets, and expressed as
TEEBREYE RELABMNELE a percentage. Fixed assets include property, plant and equipment,
E o TAfEERS T IZEI RV BRI AR and intangible assets. The CRTF is expected to meet a target rate
FrEENECEEBERHREEZEL.7% of return on fixed assets of 6.7 per cent (2012: 8.3 per cent) per year
(2012 : 8.3%) ° as determined by the Financial Secretary.
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M - BfmRastt 8. Property, plant and equipment
TR RE KB
ey By IS&=:2) AE faxg
Land Fumiture,
and Computer fittings and Motor

buildings equipment equipment vehicles Total
D73 Cost
F20114FE481H At 1 April 2011 398,511 29,854 21,563 — 449,928
B0 Additions — 1,352 150 — 1,502
1E20124E3831H At 31 March 2012 398,511 31,206 21,713 — 451,430
2yl Additions — 500 29 244 773
{£2013%F3H31H At 31 March 2013 398,511 31,706 21,742 244 452,203
SEHE Accumulated depreciation
E20114FE481H At 1 April 2011 77,080 28,261 13,236 — 118,527
FRER Charge for the year 4,445 747 3,694 — 8,886
E20123831H At 31 March 2012 81,475 29,008 16,930 - 127,413
FANEH Charge for the year 4,445 779 2,214 28 7,466
{£2013%£3H31H At 31 March 2013 85,920 29,787 19,144 28 134,879
RHEFE Net book value
{£2013%F3H31H At 31 March 2013 312,591 1,919 2,598 216 317,324
E20124E3831H At 31 March 2012 317,036 2,198 4,783 — 324,017
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9. HEEEE

©

Intangible assets

BT IR R A TR KA

Computer software licences and system development costs

D%

A

s#0

ERES S

REH#E

FEEA]D

FRER

TEEF#E

IREFE

FEEF#E

Cost

At beginning of year

Additions

At end of year

Accumulated amortisation

At beginning of year

Charge for the year

At end of year

Net book value

At end of year

182,134

42,688

224,822

141,272

13,494

164,766

70,056

2012

175,714

6,420

182,134

131,931

9,341

141,272

40,862




10. JMEEREETF 10. Placement with the Exchange Fund
HEEESHEARERRT.09315FH T The balance of the placement with the Exchange Fund amounted
(20124 : 1.03518(=#%7t) > HA 148 to HK$109.315 million (2012: HK$103.518 million), being the
BITAREER 0 931.50 82012 original placement of HK$100 million plus HK$9.315 million (2012:
351.8BH L) ARSHERAEAREN HK$3.518 million) interest paid but not yet withdrawn at the end of
KRIZEA B - ZEFRAEHEANEHRER the reporting period. The term of the placement is six years from the
BiEs) » BARERIRIUR B FA ° date of placement, during which the amount of original placement

cannot be withdrawn.
HNERESERANERSFEIABEENEE Interest on the placement is payable at a fixed rate determined
BEEIFE  ZEXRESKREMHGBEES every January. The rate is the average annual investment return
FNFHFERERR  HIFHIER of the Exchange Fund’s Investment Portfolio for the past six years
SESFEL—EFENFEHEERLS © ™ or the average annual yield of three-year Exchange Fund Notes for
ENEESE  TRAE0% - 2013FEE the previous year subject to a minimum of zero per cent, whichever
BERAGED.0% » 201 2E5EHEL.6% - is the higher. The interest rate has been fixed at 5.0 per cent per

annum for the year 2013 and at 5.6 per cent per annum for the year

2012.

1. BUIRFR K FE(T 718 11. Debtors and prepayments
FEFHRITESRF B Accrued interest from bank deposits 3,055 3,095
EzT9MNERE S FZAF B Accrued interest from Placement with the 1,348 1,441

Exchange Fund
TANFIERE MRS Prepayment and other deposits 3,950 3,963
k] Total 8,353 8,499
12. IRAEUTA 12. Deferred revenue

ETRSE NI BB S EMREWE -

This represents subscription fees/other service charges received in
advance of which services have not yet been rendered.
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13. BEiEF 13. Provision for employee benefits
It RIEET B3R EHARER B R PTIR ALY AR 75 This represents the estimated liability for employees’ annual leave
BTYREEFBREAEVWREEN RIS and obligations on contract-end gratuities payable to contract staff
af& (BHEE20) - for services rendered up to end of the reporting period (also see
Note2(i)).
14, IRIEFRFR 14. Deferred tax
HEHBRRRABERBNELTREE & The deferred tax liability recognised in the statement of financial
HRITER BB B EBITE LS EmE position arises entirely from depreciation allowances which are in
& FANEEHOT - excess of the related depreciation and amortisation. The movements
during the year are as follows:
EFRVHERR Balance at beginning of year 6,925 7,398
2EWER R AHMIEE / Charged / (Credited) to statement of 4,755 (473)
(&) comprehensive income —_— _
EEENERR Balance at end of year 11,680 6,925
15. ZEEELEAR 15. Trading fund capital
I RBITHEERESHRE - This represents the Government’s investment in the CRTF.
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REBF

16. Retained earnings

TEERIIESR Balance at beginning of year 516,886 516,886

FEEDEK S Total comprehensive income for the year 253,612 216,586

BRARS Proposed dividend (253,612) (216,586)

EFERNERS Balance at end of year 516,836 516,886
17. BESERR R 17. Proposed dividend

A BT 3 38 A S R IR B E IR 2 H W ad
RV REBREFZRRBRZENEE
LEEEINEMNI00NBEFRIKELLE

(2012 : 100%) fEH

The proposed dividend to the Government is based on the total
comprehensive income for the year and the target dividend payout
ratio of 100 per cent (2012:100 per cent) stated in the annual
business plan approved by the Secretary for Financial Services and
the Treasury.

18. L ERZERRSE 18. Cash and cash equivalents
R NIBITIERR Cash and bank balances 16,286 12,914
IRITER Bank deposits 547,700 558,700
/NEF 563,936 571,614
B BEEHREA3MES Bank deposits with original maturity (547,700) (653,399
M EMERITIERR over three months _ _—
HEREREE Cash and cash equivalents 16,286 18,215
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19. BEANLTRIRZS

BRY IR BHRERANBIUIKENR S
Hh 0 FREREATHHMERR Z
LU

(a)

(o)

(©

LEESIRHTEEATNREEE
EMEEHRSE - BRI BIAK
BEEMY) > MARBFEEREAG
Mz - REBELRBENWRETE

1,315.38#7c (20128 1,706.7
EHBIT)
BEATREFEEESHNREBE

BEMH B BRI =13 &R
B s KEEE - HAMSHEE - f
REERES - EFRFHIHE
1,732.287%7T (20124 - 1,641.28
BIT) K

HEEATRANEMRBIER
WAEMERRES  FEREZISER
gt (20124 : 15.08%7T) °

HEIE A TR AT RSRETAR
WESKBARARNNER » W&F
RBFERYETEEAL - WERIRDEK
AU

19. Related party transactions

Apart from those separately disclosed in the financial statements, the

other material related party transactions for the year are summarised

as follows:

@)

Services provided to related parties included search and
copying services, collection of certain tax-loaded fees and
bona vacantia, and the administration of the Money Lenders
Registry on behalf of the Government. The total revenue derived
from these services amounted to HK$13.153 million (2012:
HK$17.067 million);

Services received from related parties included services
on acquisition of stores, mail, printing, training, information
technology, building management, rental of accommodation,
central administration and auditing. The total cost incurred
on these services amounted to HK$17.322 million (2012:
HK$16.412 million); and

Capital expenditure in relation to information technology and
renovation services provided by related parties amounted to
HK$0.030 million (2012: HK$0.150 million).

Services provided by or to related parties were charged at the

rates payable by the general public where such services were also

available to members of the public, or on a full cost recovery basis

where such services were only available to related parties.
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20. Capital commitments

At the end of the reporting period, the CRTF had capital

commitments, so far as not provided for in the financial statements,

as follows:

ERENEN Authorised and contracted for 34,542 50,826
21. &REGEE Financial risk management
(a) BEBER (@) Investment policy

(o)

RIZHERSNIRARIR » RSB IR
BRI IRITRIE RN -

EERER
EEEREERIEN—HTFEES
RARBEETEEMSI S —AEXY
BRANER -

SEESNEERR  TEEREU
1R~ RITEREINEREER - &
BESITHRRBGR  WFHEERA
AENEERE

FEMOIRR T 2 BIE YR S - HHEIR
FERREBE SHBFERESEER
& FTEERERIIERINE BN
RESRTT o

ERIEESHER
RIE

HiBEEERR

EREPHERAEEESHNESRHEE
FIRAENRSEERRBEMEER
HiRHE(E

To provide an ancillary source of income, surplus cash is placed

with banks in fixed-term deposits.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will
fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other party to incur
a financial loss.

The CRTF’s credit risk is primarily attributable to debtors, bank
deposits and placement with the Exchange Fund. The CRTF has
a credit policy in place and the exposure to these credit risks is
monitored on an ongoing basis.

Debtors include mainly accrued interest and the associated
credit risk is minimal. To minimise credit risks, all fixed deposits
are placed with licensed banks in Hong Kong.

For the placement with the Exchange Fund, the credit risk is
considered to be low.

The maximum exposure to credit risk of the financial assets
of the CRTF at the end of the reporting period is equal to their
carrying amounts.
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Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in
meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities.

The CRTF employs projected cash flow analysis to manage
liquidity risk by forecasting the amount of cash required and
monitoring the working capital of the CRTF to ensure that all
liabilities due and known funding requirements could be met. As
the CRTF has a strong liquidity position, it has a very low level of
liquidity risk.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk refers to the risk of loss arising from changes in
market interest rates. This can be further classified into fair value
interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk.

Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. Since the CRTF’s bank deposits bear interest
at fixed rates, their fair values will fall when market interest
rates increase. However, as all the bank deposits are stated at
amortised cost, changes in market interest rates will not affect
their carrying amounts and the CRTF’s profit and reserves.

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The CRTF is not exposed to material cash flow
interest rate risk because it has no major financial instruments

bearing interest at a floating rate.

Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of
a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign

exchange rates.

The CRTF does not have an exposure to currency risk as all of
its financial instruments are denominated in Hong Kong dollar.
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() Other financial risk
The CRTF is exposed to financial risk arising from changes in the
interest rate on the placement with the Exchange Fund which
is determined every January (Note 10). It was estimated that,
as at 31 March 2013, a 50 basis point increase/decrease in the
interest rates for 2012 and 2013, with all other variables held
constant, would increase/decrease the profit for the year and

reserves by HK$0.5 million.

(9) Fair values
The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets
is based on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting
period. In the absence of such quoted market prices, fair values
are estimated using present value or other valuation techniques,
using inputs based on market conditions existing at the end of

the reporting period.

All financial instruments are stated in the statement of financial
position at amounts equal to or not materially different from their

fair values.

Possible impact of amendments, new standards and
interpretations issued but not yet effective for the year
ended 31 March 2013

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has
issued a number of amendments, new standards and interpretations
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 March 2013 and
which have not been early adopted in these financial statements.

The CRTF is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments, new standards and interpretations
is expected to be in the period of initial adoption. So far it has
concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant

impact on the CRTF’s results of operations and financial position.
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The following developments may result in new or amended
disclosures in future financial statements:

LT Bt R FAH
SEHHAR

Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after

HKAS 19 (2011), Employee Benefits

RS ERSEI2% TS TH 298 | 98T

HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments

HEUEHREENFE135%7 TAFESE
HKFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement

BERETHEAETIREER]) " MBREANE2®R BT

— Hih2EBRIEE N 23R 20124 7A1H
Amendments to HKAS 1(Revised), Presentation of Financial Statements

— Presentation of ltems of Other Comprehensive Income 1 Jduly 2012
EBSEIERIZE195% (2011) TEERF 4 20131/ 1H

— SRIEERSRAENH 20144%1R1H
Amendments to HKAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation

— Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities 1 January 2014
BBGERIE36S: T EERE ) B

— FERE E D SN R 201441 A1H
Amendments to HKAS 36, Impairment of Assets

— Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets 1 January 2014
EBUBREERETSR "SR TA KE, NEET

— KBE-cHEERSRBENHE 201341/ 1H

Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures

— Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities 1 January 2013
ERMBREERIESE "SI A 2015 1A1H

1 January 2013

1 January 2015

2013F181H
1 January 2013
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Chairman
Hon Paul CHAN Mo-po, MH, JP

Deputy Chairman
Hon Starry LEE Wai-king, JP

Members
Hon Albert HO Chun-yan

Ir Dr Hon Raymond HO Chung-tai, SBS, S.B.St. J., JP

Hon James TO Kun-sun

Hon CHAN Kam-lam, SBS, JP (to 25 May 2011)

Dr Hon Philip WONG Yu-hong, GBS
Hon Miriam LAU Kin-yee, GBS, JP

Hon Abraham SHEK Lai-him, SBS, JP

Hon Audrey EU Yuet-mee, SC, JP
Hon Jeffrey LAM Kin-fung, GBS, JP

Hon Andrew LEUNG Kwan-yuen, GBS, JP

Hon WONG Ting-kwong, SBS, JP
Hon Ronny TONG Ka-wah, SC

Hon CHIM Pui-chung (to 14 March 2011)

Prof Hon Patrick LAU Sau-shing, SBS, JP

Clerk
Ms Connie SZETO

Legal Adviser
Mr KAU Kin-wah

Mr Timothy TSO
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List of Members of the Standing Committee on Company Law Reform 2012-13

EE Chairman
MESE 54, SC, JP Mr Godfrey LAM Wan-ho, SC, JP
(Z2013F1810H L) (prior to 10 January 2013)
BZRBEELE, SC Mr Anderson CHOW Ka-ming, SC
(FA2013%F1A11H#E) (from 11 January 2013)
=8 Members
BEXEE Mr Stephen BIRKETT
Anne CARVER %+ Mrs Anne CARVER
(Z2013F1831HL) (prior to 31 January 2013)
BR{hfe 44, BBS, JP Mr Rock CHEN Chung-nin, BBS, JP
ALt Mr CHEW Fook-aun
SeiEESRL Mr Vincent FAN Chor-wah
EPNCIE 6 Professor David Donald
(H2013E281H#E) (from 1 February 2013)
RHBRIT Professor GOO Say-hak
MEETE Mr Peter W GREENWOOD
EFRaL Ms Roxanne ISMAIL
TEBSEE Mr Johnson KONG Chi-how
REEShLE A Mr Rainier LAM Hok-chung
RAL L Mrs Catherine MORLEY
RS Mr Kenneth NG Sing-yip
JeERS £ Ms Edith SHIH
(Z2013FE1831H1E) (prior to 31 January 2013)
ERGEL Dr Kelvin WONG Tin-yau
REELL Ms Benita YU Ka-po
NEEEL L Ms Wendy YUNG Wen-yee

(2013528 10#) (from 1 February 2013)
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Ex-Officio Members

Mr Mark DICKENS, JP,
representing the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited
(prior to 28 February 2013)

Mr David GRAHAM,
representing the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited
(from 1 March 2013)

Mr Stefan GANNON, JP,
representing the Hong Kong Monetary Authority

Mr Andrew YOUNG,
representing the Securities and Futures Commission

Ms Ada CHUNG, JP,
Registrar of Companies

Mr Darryl CHAN Wai-man,
representing the Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury
(prior to 23 November 2012)

Mr HO Chung-kei, Patrick, JP,
representing the Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury
(from 26 November 2012)

Ms Teresa WONG Siu-wan,
Official Receiver

Professor Edward L G TYLER,
representing the Department of Justice

Secretary
Ms Phyllis MCKENNA
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List of Members of the Subcommittee on Subsidiary Legislation Made under
the New Companies Ordinance

B Chairman

EENZEE, SBS, JP Hon WONG Ting-kwong, SBS, JP
BlEE Deputy Chairman

Pl ASEA= Hon Kenneth LEUNG

=8 Members

fAIME{ZEE Hon Albert HO Chun-yan
REREE Hon James TO Kun-sun
AESEE, SBS, JP Hon Abraham SHEK Lai-him, SBS, JP
WE#EEE, GBS, JP Hon Jeffrey LAM Kin-fung, GBS, JP
REBEZES, GBS, JP Hon Andrew LEUNG Kwan-yuen, GBS, JP
mREEZEES, SC Hon Ronny TONG Ka-wah, SC
FEEE, P Hon Starry LEE Wai-king, JP
HHEEEE, P Hon Paul TSE Wai-chun, JP
Hit&iZES, GBS, JP Hon James TIEN Pei-chun, GBS, JP
fAIEEREE Hon Steven HO Chun-yin
EEE Hon Charles Peter MOK

BREREHEE Dr Hon Kenneth CHAN Ka-lok
SREEHEB Hon Dennis KWOK

B (S, SBS, JP Hon SIN Chung-kai, SBS, JP
BRT#E, P Hon Martin LIAO Cheung-kong, JP
BE=Z8, JP Dr Hon CHIANG Lai-wan, JP
EEHES Hon CHUNG Kwok-pan

WE Clerk

A EL L Ms Connie SZETO

LB Legal Adviser

Eyrttas Mr Timothy TSO

EFkEINE Miss Winnie LO
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The New Companies Ordinance — Major Initiatives
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MEASURES FOR ENHANCING CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

Strengthening the Accountability of Directors

e Restricting the appointment of corporate directors by requiring every
private company to have at least one natural person to act as director, to

enhance transparency and accountability.

e Clarifying in the statute the directors’ duty of care, skill and diligence with
a view to providing clear guidance to directors.

Enhancing Shareholder Engagement in the Decision-
Making Process

e Introducing a comprehensive set of rules for proposing and passing a

written resolution.

¢ Requiring a company to bear the expenses of circulating members’
statements relating to the business of, or proposed resolutions for,
Annual General Meetings, if they are received in time to be sent with the
notice of the meeting.

¢ Reducing the threshold requirement for members to demand a poll from
10 per cent to 5 per cent of the total voting rights.
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Improving the Disclosure of Company Information

* Requiring public companies and the larger (i.e., companies that do
not qualify for simplified reporting) private companies' and guarantee
companies? to prepare a more comprehensive directors’ report which
includes an analytical and forward-looking “business review”, whilst
allowing private companies to opt out by special resolution. The business
review will provide useful information for shareholders. In particular,
the requirement to include information relating to environmental and
employee matters that have a significant effect on the company is in line
with international trends to promote corporate social responsibility.

Fostering Shareholder Protection

e Introducing more effective rules to deal with directors’ conflicts of
interests, including expanding the requirement for seeking shareholders’
approval to cover directors’ employment contracts which exceed three

years.

e Requiring disinterested shareholders’ approval in cases where
shareholders’ approval is required for transactions of public companies
and their subsidiaries.

e Requiring the conduct of directors to be ratified by disinterested
shareholders’ approval to prevent conflicts of interest and possible abuse
of power by interested majority shareholders in ratifying the unauthorised

conduct of directors.

TR (AFEE)  RAATIFELITERANEARE @ BiEA/AT : @2FEIRATBBSE—ET  ONEEIBBBE—ET  ROEE

RER100A -

Under the new Ordinance, a private company is regarded as small if it satisfies any two of the following conditions: (a) total annual revenue of no more than HK$100
million; (b) total assets of no more than HK$100 million; and (c) no more than 100 employees.

2 REH (ATMEE) o ERADMREMRATBIBHEE 250085 » AR A/ NUERAT -

Under the new Ordinance, a guarantee company is regarded as small if its total annual revenue does not exceed HK$25 million.
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e Replacing the “headcount test” with a not more than 10 per cent
disinterested voting requirement for privatisations and specified schemes
of arrangement, while giving the court a new discretion to dispense with
the test (in cases where it is retained) for members’ schemes.

e Extending the scope of the unfair prejudice remedy to cover “proposed
acts and omissions”, so that a member may bring an action for unfair
prejudice even if the act or omission that would be prejudicial to the
interests of members is not yet effected.

Strengthening Auditors’ Rights

e Empowering an auditor to require a wider range of persons, including
the officers of a company’s Hong Kong subsidiary undertakings and
any person holding or accountable for the company or its subsidiary
undertakings’ accounting records, to provide information or explanation
reasonably required for the performance of the auditor’s duties. The
offence for failure to provide the information or explanation is extended
to cover officers of the company and the wider range of persons.

MEASURES FOR ENSURING BETTER
REGULATION

Ensuring the Accuracy of Information on the Public
Register

e Clarifying the powers of the Registrar of Companies (the Registrar)
in relation to the registration of documents, such as specifying the
requirements for the authentication of documents to be delivered to
the Companies Registry (the Registry) and the manner of delivery, and
withholding the registration of unsatisfactory documents pending further

particulars.
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e Clarifying the Registrar’s powers in relation to the keeping of the register,
such as rectifying typographical or clerical errors, making annotations
and requiring a company to resolve any inconsistency or provide
updated information.

e Providing a statutory basis for applications to court for removing
information from the register that is inaccurate, forged or derived from

anything invalid, ineffective or done without the authority of the company.

e Requiring a company to deliver to the Registry a return, including a
statement of capital, whenever there is a change to its capital structure,
to ensure that the public register contains up-to-date information on a

company’s share capital structure.

Improving the Registration of Charges

¢ Revising the list of registrable charges, such as expressly providing
that a charge on an aircraft or any share in an aircraft is registrable,
and removing the requirement to register a charge for the purpose of
securing an issue of debentures.

e Replacing the automatic acceleration of the repayment obligation
with a choice given to the lender as to whether the secured amount
is to become immediately payable when a charge is void due to non-

compliance with the registration requirements.

e Requiring a certified copy of the charge instrument (in addition to the
prescribed particulars of the charge) to be registered and available for
public inspection, to provide more detailed information to those who
search the register.

e Shortening the period for delivery to the Registrar of the charge
instrument and the prescribed particulars from five weeks to one month,
to reduce the period during which the charge is not visible on the
register.



c RERBTEREE / BMEFTMETRER
RBEAIABEMZIBBE / BERNEHEER -
FZEXMARATER -

CE HIEH R

o PAEEAT BB EME =RGM - BIFR
B AVEEBRBARANREMERERFH
—75 0 UREBRARREWBARES Y
RAAREE  LUREREE MR F A s sE
RIS -

NNEE#EHE

e IRBEEENATED @ FINBERERES
AL REFREFRXME - DURLUEERBRNT
HEERAL -

s FIET EXENRERR  DIERAEZLEM
FTSMERHR Z IR LT ER M ARREE -

« BT REMEASNEN OIS © MEEE
BT RERHBRNERRNEBRARS
BRALSETHOT I

o A ARBRABER (RAREH) B
NAFKEEREENNENE  BREZBF]
ETEEAL WHEELRERENEITH
BRRENFIE  WEEREHERLER
FHIER

BT BEZBENREHIHIEIT - MBREKE
AMBARI X AR R b B XM TR E R RIRALR
BRNREERER - BBEE -

e Requiring written evidence of satisfaction/release of a charge to
accompany a notification to the Registrar for registration of the
satisfaction/release, thus making such documents available for public

inspection.

Refining the Scheme for Deregistration of Companies

e Imposing three additional conditions for the deregistration of defunct
companies, namely that the applicant must confirm that the company is
not a party to any legal proceedings and that neither the company nor its
subsidiary has any immovable property in Hong Kong, to minimise any
potential abuse of the deregistration procedure.

Improving the Enforcement Regime

e Enhancing the investigatory powers of an inspector, for example, by
requiring a person under investigation to preserve records or documents
and to verify statements made by statutory declaration.

e Providing better safeguards to ensure the confidentiality of information
obtained in investigations and enquiries and for the better protection of

informers.

¢ Providing new powers for the Registrar to obtain documents or
information to ascertain whether any conduct that would constitute an
offence in relation to the provision of false or misleading statement to the

Registrar has taken place.

e Strengthening the enforcement regime in relation to the liabilities of
officers of companies for the companies’ contravention of provisions in
the new Ordinance, including lowering the threshold for prosecuting a
breach or contravention and extending it to cover reckless acts through
a new definition of “responsible person”.

e Introducing a new offence in relation to auditor's reports. The offence
would be committed if the auditors in question knowingly or recklessly
caused two important statements to be omitted from the auditor's
report.
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e Empowering the Registrar to compound specified offences to optimise
the use of judicial resources. Compoundable offences are generally
confined to straightforward, minor regulatory offences committed by
companies that are punishable by a fine.

MEASURES FOR FACILITATING BUSINESS
Streamlining Procedures

e Allowing companies to dispense with Annual General Meetings by
unanimous shareholders’ consent.

e Introducing an alternative court-free procedure for reducing capital
based on a solvency test.

e Allowing all types of companies (rather than just private companies, as
in the current Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32) to purchase their own
shares out of capital, subject to a solvency test.

e Allowing all types of companies (whether listed or unlisted) to provide
financial assistance to another party for the purpose of acquiring the
company’s own shares or the shares of its holding company, subject
to a solvency test. Under the current Companies Ordinance, subject to
certain specified exceptions, there is a broad prohibition on the giving of
financial assistance to purchase the company’s own shares.

* Introducing a new court-free statutory amalgamation procedure for

wholly owned intra-group companies.

e Streamlining the procedures for the restoration of dissolved companies
by court order.

* Introducing a new administrative restoration procedure for a company
dissolved by the Registrar in straightforward cases, without the need for
recourse to the court.
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Facilitating Simplified Reporting

e Facilitating SMEs to prepare simplified financial and directors’ reports
along the following lines:

— a private company (with the exception of a bank/deposit-
taking company, an insurance company or a stockbroker) will
automatically qualify for simplified reporting if it qualifies as a “small
private company”.

— the holding company of a group of companies that qualifies as a
“group of small private companies” will also qualify for simplified
reporting.

— a private company that is not a member of a corporate group may
adopt simplified reporting with the agreement of all the members.

e Allowing small guarantee companies and groups of small guarantee
companies, which have a total annual revenue of not more than $25
million, to qualify for simplified reporting.

e A private company or a group of private companies which is not qualified
as a “small private company” or a “group of small private companies”
respectively may prepare simplified reports if it meets a higher size
criteria and if the members holding 75 per cent of the voting rights so
resolve and no member objects.

e Making the summary financial reporting provisions more user-friendly and

extending their application to companies in general (rather than confining
them to listed companies, as in the current Companies Ordinance).

Facilitating Business Operations

e Making the use of a common seal optional and relaxing the requirements
for a company to have an official seal for use abroad.

e Permitting a general meeting to be held at more than one location using
electronic technology.
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e Setting out the rules governing communications to and by companies in
electronic form.

MEASURES FOR MODERNISING THE LAW
Abolishing Par Value for Shares

e Adopting a mandatory system of no-par for all companies with a share
capital as par value is an antiquated concept that may give rise to
practical problems, such as inhibiting the raising of new capital and
unnecessarily complicating the accounting regime.

Removing the Power to Issue Share Warrants

¢ Removing the power of companies to issue share warrants to bearers.
Share warrants are undesirable because of the lack of transparency
in the recording of their ownership and the manner by which they are
transferred.

Better Protection of Personal Data 3

e Introducing new provisions for withholding directors’ residential
addresses and full identity card/passport numbers of individuals from
public inspection in order to foster the protection of personal data.

Clarifying the Rules on Indemnification of Directors against
Liabilities to Third Parties

e Clarifying the rules on the indemnification of directors against liabilities to

third parties in order to remove the uncertainties at common law.
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In order to allow more time for the community to build consensus on this issue, the relevant provisions will not be included in Commencement Notice to be made in

the forth quarter of 2013 for commencing the new CO.
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Introduction

As a corporate regulator, the Companies Registry (the Registry)
acknowledges and attaches great importance to good governance as
it would affect not only the efficiency and effectiveness of the Registry,
but also the public’s confidence and trust in its capability and integrity
and the level of satisfaction of its employees. The Registry’s governance
model is based on an effective Management Board (the Board), whose
main responsibilities are to establish the guiding principles and policies
for the Registry, to monitor compliance with those principles and policies
and ensure that staff, and the Board alike, are held accountable for their
performance.

The Governance Framework

Effective governance is vital to promoting the long-term sustainability of
the Registry and safeguarding the interests of all its stakeholders. The
Registry believes that the highest standards of corporate governance is
best fulfilled through a competent and accountable board, transparent
and timely reporting systems, robust internal control systems, effective risk
management, commitment to quality corporate social responsibility, and
taking into account the needs of our staff, customers and public interest as
a whole.

A Competent and Accountable Board
Solid Foundations for Management and Oversight

* The Registrar of Companies (the Registrar) should put in place a
clear organisational structure of the Registry with defined roles and
responsibilities for all levels of management and staff.

e The Board, headed by the Registrar and comprised all directorate
officers of the Registry, is responsible for setting strategic directions
and managing the business and affairs of the Registry with the aim of

achieving its vision and mission.
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e The Board should establish committees on specific areas such as
integrity, investment strategies, development and departmental
establishment, to enhance efficiency and ensure proper management
and oversight of the Registry’s business and affairs. These committees
should make recommendations where appropriate to the Board for
continual monitoring and enhancement of good corporate governance

practices.

Implementation of the Government’s Policies and
Objectives

e The Registrar should set up effective arrangements to ensure proper
implementation of the Government’s policies and objectives.

e Senior management of the Registry should meet regularly and maintain
close contact with the Financial Services and the Treasury Bureau
(Financial Services Branch). Regular meetings should be held to review

and monitor the performance of the Registry.

e Business performance should be reviewed, from time to time, and policy
endorsement should be obtained on all major legislative initiatives.

Corporate and Business Plan

e Corporate and Business Plan should be prepared and submitted to the
Secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury for approval annually.

e The approved plan serves as a basis for evaluating the standard of the
Registry’s performance and for devising the Registry’s development and

work plans for the next five years.
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Board Meetings

e Board meetings, chaired by the Registrar, should be held monthly to
discuss, review and monitor the Registry’s major initiatives and activities,
either in progress or in the pipeline, to ensure proper planning, effective
operation and compliance with relevant regulations and established

procedures.

e The Board should identify, deliberate and resolve policy, operational and
legislative issues at meetings in a timely and efficient manner.

Transparent and Timely Reporting Systems
Accountability for Public Money

e The Board should ensure that effective and efficient budgeting and
financial management processes are established to ensure proper

deployment of resources in achieving the Registry’s vision.

e The Board should ensure that stakeholders and the general public
are provided with clear and sufficient information on the financial and
operating results of the Trading Fund. This would enable stakeholders
to understand properly the nature of business of the Registry, its current

state of affairs and how it is being developed for the future.

e Annual accounts should be prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles and standards in Hong Kong and be
audited by the Director of Audit.

e The audited annual accounts together with the Registry’s annual report
should be tabled in the Legislative Council every year and uploaded to

the Registry’s website to facilitate information dissemination.

e The Investment Strategy Committee, chaired by the Registrar and
comprised members of the Registry’s senior management, should meet
at regular intervals and when a need arises to review the performance of
the Registry’s investment portfolio and consider alternative investment
strategies and proposals.
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Robust Internal Control and
Risk Management Systems

Risk Management

e The Registry should establish a sound and effective risk management
and internal control system, with clear policies and regulations on
administrative, procurement and financial matters, proper segregation
of duties, alignment of IT systems with the corporate mission, policies
and objectives; and proper functioning of the provision of services to
customers.

e Policies and regulations should be reviewed regularly and updated to
suit the changing environment and align with policies and regulation
promulgated by government bureaux.

e The Development Steering Committee, chaired by the Registrar and
comprised members of the Registry’s senior management and a
representative of the Financial Services and the Treasury Bureau (Financial
Services Branch), should meet monthly to consider new initiatives, review
implementation progress of major IT projects and resolve development
issues.

e Guidelines on Information Security Incident Handling, End Users
Instructions on IT Security should be circulated at regular intervals to
foster awareness of security issues and compliance with various security
policies and instructions on IT systems by staff. The instructions and
guidelines should be reviewed regularly to ensure consistency with the
government’s prevailing guidelines and standards.

e The Registry’s IT Security Policy, Contingency Plans and Business
Contingency Plans should be regularly reviewed and updated to
ensure that the security control in place is in compliance with the latest
standards and requirements.

e |T security risk assessments and audits should be conducted by
independent auditors to ensure that the Registry’s IT security protection
measures are proper and up to standard.
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Staff Recruitment and Training

e The Registry recognises that a team of high-calibre professional staff is
essential for providing quality services to its customers and sustaining
the development of the Registry. The Registry should conduct
recruitment exercises in a fair and open manner to meet its staffing

requirements.

e The Departmental Establishment Committee, which is set up to assist
the Registrar to determine the non-directorate establishment in the
Registry, should consider staff proposals and make recommendations
to the Registrar to achieve the best use of manpower resources for the

delivery of our services to the public.

e The Registry adopts a strategic approach to staff training and
development matters. Departmental Training and Development Plan
should be drawn up annually to meet the operational needs of the
Registry, to ensure efficient use of training resources and facilitate the
development of staff members.

Integrity and Honesty in Public Service

e Staff of the Registry are required to abide and comply with the Civil
Service Code. The Code sets out the core values which are central to
the integrity and probity of the civil service and the standards of conduct
which are required to be upheld, including organisational and ethical
principles of justice, impartiality, integrity, diligence and accountability of
decisions and actions.

* An Integrity Management Committee, which is set up to formulate
long term departmental integrity management strategies and monitor
implementation of the integrity management initiatives of the Registry,

should meet at regular intervals.

e Integrity Management Programme Action Plan should be drawn
up annually to provide all staff members with clear guidance on the

Registry’s commitment to and efforts in integrity management.



144

fyk H
Appendix H

- BIEEREESAERRTSAAUNARE
THHETENRMREBEORE - U
SERERTRIDEMAL RIS SR

3 -

BT#HFER
« ARMRAKBETRFERF  REEATLS

MREBNERT  BLBUER ~ ROIZERERST
FHERF A REHIRAVER B °

RIFNERRAHAR

BB PR ARENE
BB BRE

BE K

. ZIS&E&%MW (CARERSTAD AEEERNE
c BT RSB RARATREERET
IEIEEYE’\MTE&%@?E  BEMEEMRR D B
BT RERENRE - URHEAMZEE
HEHERENBERFIRE KR -

s BERBEACHRE  HEAREHERRZN
RHER  BERENRE  DRSFE
EERNBFRE °

s AREMBEMRERE (BAER (A
[B) RG1) FIIRHNEEER -

c AREFRFBMAIBE » WM/AMILBWHY

BERE BEFD  SANEHHRE %
HEFEM  WHBERERNFFET
) o

e The Integrity Management Committee should review regularly the
effectiveness of various measures taken to promote staff awareness of
and alertness to integrity issues and various regulations and guidelines
governing conduct and discipline.

Staff Complaints Procedure

e Staff complaints procedure allowing employees to raise concerns in
confidence about possible breaches of policies, regulations or code of
ethics should be adopted and promulgated.

Good Customer and Public Relations

Proper and Effective Channels of Communications with
Customers and the Public

¢ The Registry adopts the Code on Access to Information as its disclosure
policy. The Code provides a formal administrative framework for the
provision of information by the Government to members of the public
with the objective of keeping the community well informed about the
Government, the services that it provides and the basis for policies and
decisions that affect individuals and the community as a whole.

e Information relating to the Registry and its developments, together
with the latest statutory and procedural requirements should be easily
accessible by the public through the best modern technology.

e Appropriate requests made under the Personal Data Privacy Ordinance
should be handled timely and appropriately.

e Effective communications with customers should be maintained.
Clear channels of communications including visits, consultations and
publications in the form of website updates, e-News, external circulars
and information pamphlets should be established.
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Evaluation Mechanism

e Effective channels to receive customers’ feedback and complaints
should also be established for service enhancement.

e Views, ideas and opinions from different customer groups should
be collected through well-established channels to facilitate business

process review and consideration of service improvement initiatives.

e Performance pledges should be set and awareness of, commitment to

and continuous enhancement of the pledges should be promoted.

Commitments to Corporate Social Responsibility
Maintenance of Highest Ethical Standards

e The Registry should establish appropriate mechanism to ensure
maintenance of the highest ethical standards in the conduct of business
and our care for the community, the environment and the well being of

staff members.

e Clear guidelines and procedures for disclosing interests and avoiding
conflicts of interest should be provided to staff.

Care for the Community

¢ A volunteer team was established to enhance the Registry’s contributions
to the community as a whole by participating in social services.

e Charitable activities and educational initiatives in the community should

be encouraged and promoted.
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Care for the Environment

e The Registry is committed to maintaining a high level of environmental
awareness among staff members and pursuing environmental protection
through adoption of environmentally friendly technologies, minimisation
of possible adverse impact on the environment and continuing to find
ways to enhance the Registry's environmental friendliness.

e The Registry should set out its environmental policies, achievements and
targets to enhance the Registry's environmental friendliness.

Care for Staff Members

e The Registry is committed to enhancing the well being and the training
and development of our staff members. The Registry implements a Staff
Motivation Scheme to boost staff performance and morale.

e The Companies Registry Safety Committee, which is set up to formulate,
implement, monitor and review policies and measures relating to
occupational safety and health, should ensure a high standard of
occupational safety and health in the workplace.
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The Companies Registry (the Registry) attaches great importance to
maintaining the highest ethical standards in the conduct of our business,
caring for the community, the environment and the well being of our staff
members. This Statement sets out the framework on how we manage our

corporate social responsibilities.

Maintain Highest Ethical Standards

We are committed to maintaining the highest ethical standards in the
conduct of our business. We have implemented an Integrity Management
Plan which sets out the administrative structure and measures for
promoting integrity management in the Registry. We have established
clear guidelines and procedures for disclosing interests and avoiding
conflicts of interest. We also draw up an Annual Action Plan setting out the
programme of work and implementation time frames on a yearly basis to
provide all staff members with a clear picture of the Registry’s commitment
and efforts in integrity management.

Care for Staff Members

We care for and respect our staff members. We are committed to
enhancing the well being and the training and development of our staff
members, fostering a culture of continuous learning and life-long self
development and achieving a high standard of occupational safety and

health in the workplace.

Care for the Environment

We are committed to maintaining a high level of environmental awareness
among staff members and pursuing environmental protection through
adoption of environmentally friendly technologies, minimisation of possible
adverse impact on the environment and continuing to find ways to

enhance the Registry’s environmental friendliness.
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Care for the Community

We are committed to giving the community a quality service within the
scope of our businesses and available resources and enhancing our
contributions to the community as a whole. The Registry and its members
actively participate in social services, charitable activities and educational

initiatives in the community.
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